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CHAIRMAN HENRY J. MELLO:

Good morning.

Welcome to our meeting of the Senate

Subcommittee on Economic Problems Facing Agriculture. I want to start in by introducing people
that are here on the panel and guests, and then we'll have some opening statements by the Chairman
of the Board of Supervisors and the Mayor of the City of Salinas.
So let me introduce, to my right, Kathy Huston, the Chief Consultant to the Subcommittee; and
Jim Collin who is the Administrative Assistant for Senator Rose Ann Vuich from the great City of
Dinuba.

She wasn't able to be here but I appreciate you coming over, Jim. And to my left, John

Olow, Administrative Assistant for Assemblyman Eric Seastrand -- nice to have you with us, John-Rick Weisberg with the Legislative Counsel's Office is due in shortly; and Dave Oliver and
Lucio Lopez, Sergeant at Arms; Spencer Tyler, the Communication Director on our staff; and we do
have some other elected officials here that I will recognize; some will be making a statement.
Sherry Mehl -- oh, there she is-- Sherry Mehl, Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors, representing
District 4, the Watsonville area; Phyllis Price-Meurer, Member of the Salinas City Council. I'm going
to bypass the Mayor for now and Marc because they're both going to make some introductory
remarks. Cathy O'Boyle, she's our Administrative Assistant from the Salinas office.
Okay. We'll first hear a welcome from Marc Del Piero, County Supervisor, Chairman of the
Monterey County Board of Supervisors.

I want to welcome you to our hearing here this morning,

Marc.
MR. MARC DEL PmRO:

Thank you very much, Senator. On behalf of the Monterey County

Board of Supervisors, Senator, I'd like to express our appreciation for you and your Subcommittee
holding this hearing on Economic Problems Facing Agriculture here in Salinas.

As we all are all

aware, Salinas Valley in Monterey County is one of the most agriculturally productive counties in the
entire nation.

We are the foremost county in terms of production of vegetables and what are

otherwise known as "truck crops" in the State of California. And we deeply appreciate the concern
that you, as well as your colleagues, have expressed in the past regarding the industry that is so
important to us.
What I'd like to comment on today, just briefly, is to ask you during the course of these hearings
to consider a couple of issues and to solicit information from those representatives of agribusiness so
that you can gain a better understanding of some of the problems that are immediately causing us
some serious concern in Monterey County.
We have currently a very significant crisis that has developed and is becoming more grave as
time goes on in the area of farm labor housing.

Farm labor housing and the absence thereof has

caused a significant amount of difficulty for Monterey County and for all its representatives from the
various municipalities within the Salinas Valley.

The inavailability and inadequate supply of that

farm labor housing, particularly when one takes into consideration the amnesty program that was
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implemented by Congress, has caused a tremendous number of farm workers that previously tended to
be seasonal in terms of their residency within the Salinas Valley, to now take up permanent residency
here in Monterey County.
It is most important for, I think, local government, as well as the State Legislature, to
rP.cognize that the need for provision of low-cost housing for our farm laborers must be a very high
priority.

And any assistance that the assessment committee, Subcommittee, could provide to local

government, particularly in Monterey County in regards to that area, will be greatly appreciated. It
has a tremendous economic impact in terms of agribusiness within our county, primarily because
those employers that have a work force with a reliable source of housing, an affordable source of
housing, can, in fact, guarantee themselves long-term economic benefits. And employers that have
to deal with work forces that have major housing problems tend to have difficulty in terms of their
ability to retain employees and furthermore tend to run into problems with the law when they, for
whatever reason, decide to provide housing that is not in compliance with various state health
regulations. We have had that experience in my supervisorial district on a number of

occasion~

and it

is not partiCularly a pleasant experience to have to either prosecute a farmer because of inadequate
housing that's been provided for his employees nor is it easy for us to find alternative housing for
those employees once those situations have been discovered.
Additionally, I'd like to ask that your Subcommittee take into consideration the issues of
pesticide regulation. I know Richard Nutter, the Agricultural Commissioner from Monterey County,
is going to be here today and present testimony on behalf of the Agricultural Commissioners'
Organization dealing with pesticide regulation and a number of other important issues and getting the
~unding

for these various programs. We would appreciate very much your serious consideration of his

comments.
One last issue that I'd . like to raise, and I'd like to personally thank ·you for, a number of bills
that were introduced during the course of the past legislative session, some of which were signed,
some of which were not.

A couple of pieces of

legislati~n

with additional regulations in regards to imports.

that I know you strongly supported dealt

Some of them were not successful in getting a

signature of the Governor. But nonetheless, we appreciate your rec:ognition of the important problem
that is currently causing not only the local government procuring the agribusiness industry in
Monterey County some serious concern.
We again thank you very much for holding this hearing here today. And Henry, if you're here in
Salinas anymore, you may have to buy permanent residence here. Gas eats you up. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Thank you very much, Marc.

I appreciate your remarks and also the

priorities. We have been in touch with your Board on trying to solve this farm labor housing crisis.
And what happens, as farm workers come into an area, they usually locate in a county or area that
does have a better supply of housing.

So our ability to attract workers here depends upon the

availability of housing, and that is a high priority.
On pesticide regulation, Monterey County is looked at in Sacramento as the model county that
has been first in posting and in trying to deal with the monitoring of the use of pesticides to protect

-2-

both worker reentry into the field and the residual amount that's on the product and also worlting with
the naturd.l types of programs that cut down or minimize certainly the use of pesticides.
Okay.

Before I call the next speaker, we do have Rick Weisberg who's an Attorney with the

Legislative Counsel's Office here to my left and he's the person in charge of drafting nearly all of the
legislation pertaining to agriculture. So he's kind enough to come here today because he likes to hear,
as I do, firsthand from those people who are testifying.
The next person I want to introduce is the Mayor of the City of Salinas, the Honorable
Russ Jeffries. And, Mayor, let me first thank you for the use of this building here again and your fine
City Hall that we've used so many times and appreciate you allowing us to use the building and also
you welcoming us here to your City of Salinas.
MAYOR RUSS JEFFRIES:

Senator, and your guests that are here today, we are pleased that

you're holding this hearing here in the City of Salinas. The two items that you're talking about are
very important to this particular city.

And on behalf of my City Council and all the citizens of

Salinas, I would like to thank you for taking the time to have this hearing here today. The issue that
we're talking about is the ag and also the water resources.

And without one or the other, this city

would not be here economically or feasibly.
We are very concerned with the ag industry because in 1987 it produced $1.3 billion of gross
sales in the Salinas Valley. That is very important to the City of Salinas because we have a majority
of the growers in this particular locality. And without the water, we wouldn't have the ag. We're
also concerned in our city with the competition of foreign imports that is unfair to our local growers
and puts them in a disadvantage in competing in the open market. I'm concerned about the saltwater
intrusion that we have coming towards the City of Salinas, also the nitrate contamination that's
affecting some water systems. I'm also concerned with the housing issue as Supervisor Del Piero also
had concerns on. We, here in the City of Salinas, are trying to provide low-income and moderateincome housing to help relieve some of those pressures for those particular people.
And again, on behalf of the City of Salinas, I want to thank you and welcome you and your
guests here today. And any time you want to come back and see us -- we'd surely like to have you as
a permanent resident in our fair city.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Thank you very much, Mayor. As I was driving in this morning -- I was in
Monterey earlier this morning and I drove on Alisal. First, I came right pass my alma mater, Hartnell
College, and it reminded me when I was going to college.

There were many times I'd walk down

Alisal to get down to Main Street here and it brings back a lot of memories.
All right. Thank you both very much for your welcoming remarks, and I will be just making a
brief opening statement.

I should introduce the Mayor of Marina, George Takahashi.

Thank you,

Mayor, for coming here. And I know he came here from Monterey also this morning in another event.
In preliminary reports released by the United States Department of Agriculture, I'm happy to
report that California leads the United States with $15.5 billion in cash farm receipts during the year
1987. The reason this is significant is because California is widening the gap considerably between
other farm-producing states in Texas and Iowa where gross crop receipts are between $8-9 billion a
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year. As you can see by these figures, agriculture is the backbone of our state and local economy.
I might also say that Monterey County has

~oved

up amongst the counties in the state and

Fresno continues to be the number one farm-producing county in the state. And I'm going to have to
ask Jim: Tulare the second?
MR. JIM COLLIN: Yes.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: All right. Tulare is second. Monterey is third or fourth?
MR. COLLIN: I think it just moved up to third from fourth.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: All right. Yeah, so I don't know who we pushed out. Was it Kern or some
other?
MR. COLLIN: Kern had been.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Right. So Monterey, in terms of significance in Monterey County, we are
now third amongst all the counties. And I might point out that Fresno County leads the entire nation
in the largest agricultural-producing area. I might point out that Senator Vuich also represents part
of Fresno and part of Tulare so that's why she's probably one of the, I think, the number one Senator,
at least, that is so supportive of agriculture and is an outstanding pe1•son.
The agricultural outlook has been very positive this past year. There are several issues which
continue to present concern.
The drought we are suffering through is bringing many American farmers to their knees,
particularly in the central plains states.

We have been fortunate in California, and thanks to our

expansive irrigation infrastructure and being more dependent upon snow in the Sierras than summer
rain. Without Mother Nature's cooperation this fall and winter, things could get rough in the farming
communities.

And I might point out that Monterey County many years ago took the lead in building

Naciemento and San Antonio Dams which are major contributors to recharging the underground water
supply here.

And without those dams having been built, we'd have some serious problems here.

They're also looking at other possibilities. Arroyo Seco is a potential dam site. But as Supervisor Del
Piero pointed out, and also Mayor Jeffries, the nitrates in the ground and also other chemicals that
would have negative effect on our ground water are continuing to escalate.
· The issues surrounding foreign imports continue to plague the farming industry due to the unfair
advantage our foreign producers have in terms of lower labor costs and little or no regulations on
chemical use and safety requirements.

I have authored legislation in the past that would prohibit

anyone from importing foreign wine into California without providing a certificate stating it was
produced by methods and under conditions that are equal to or greater than those required of
California wines. I will continue to pursue similar type of legislation as I believe this is the type of
"get tough" policy the United States needs to impose in order to develop a level playing field in which
we can fairly compete.

It's not only wines.

It's almost everything.

We're getting imports from

Mexico and Guatemala and New Zealand and many other countries that are using chemicals that have
been outlawed here in the United States and also in California.
In the area of pesticide, it becomes necessary for farmers to look toward new technology to
effectively and economically make a profit as greater pesticide controls and regulations are imposed.
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Farmers today are still dependent upon the use of pesticides in order to control disease, weec'l.s, and
insects. But due to potential health hazards and the sheer cost of chemicals, the emphasis is shifting
to other methods of treating these various pests. The farming industry is to be commended for their
efforts in pursuing safe, productive, and economically sound gains in the area of pest management. I
believe that we all hold the same goal-- production of safe food crops by safe procedures as
economically as possible.
At last year's hearing, there was extensive testimony provided on the Immigration Reform and
Control Act of 1986, commonly referred to as IRCA.

IRCA gave undocumented workers an

opportunity to apply for legal residency in the United States.

At the Salinas Federal Legalization

Office, approximately 39,600 farm workers applied for legal status under the Amnesty or Seasonal
Agricultural Worker Program.

Z7 ,800, or 65 percent of the applicants, have received temporary

residence status. The emphasis of immigration reform has now shifted to the employers as of June 1,
with sanctions against those who knowingly hire undocumented workers. Whether this will affect the
shortage of legal workers in the future is of great concern in this labor-intensive industry.
Many of these issues will have a direct impact on our ability and effectiveness to compete in
the world agricultural market.

Today we will hear testimony and gather information from many

individuals within the farming community in order to gain their insight and expert advice on problems
facing agriculture.
All right.

Now we're ready to go right to the list.

And we have Supervisor Sam Karas

scheduled. He's not here yet so we'll move onto the next scheduled witness, is the Honorable County
Supervisor from Santa Cruz, Sherry Mehl from District 4. Good morning.
SUPERVISOR SHERRY MEHL:

Good morning, Senator Mello.

I want to thank you for this

opportunity to speak on behalf of agriculture and issues relating to agriculture.

As you know,

agriculture has been facing many serious and compound problems. This trend seems to only continue
with matters becoming more and more serious and the solution or resolution is getting further away.
The main focus seems to be: Let us farm more land the way we know we must. Let us harvest
with competent, available workers.

Let us sell to a willing, eager public who will pay us what we

need to cover our costs and make a profit.

Let us not have to worry about foreign competition,

unwilling lenders, availability of trucks and rail cars, drought, and markets falling through the
floor-- and not to mention the new neighbors who just moved in and started a petition to stop reuse
of pesticides.
I'm not here to speak about all of these issues. I'm sure that you will hear these items repeated
throughout the day. I thought I would focus on the issue of foreign competition and our problem that
exists in our marketplace.
One part of this problem, I believe, is labeling and the effects that it has had on the
marketplace. The consumer no longer knows when something is in season. With the flood of imports
into the market, the produce is readily available on a year-round basis keeping the price at a constant
low for those who try to compete only with the seasonal supply.
This should not be done to be punitive on the foreign produce but it should be educational for
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the consumer so that they can make the choice for themselves.
agriculture more and more every day.

A consumer loses track with

It is only by the understanding of agriculture and the

awareness of the consumer that any of these other problems are

ev~r

going to be resolved. Those

who oppose this type of legislation are either not faced with foreign competition or are hoarding
themselves to supplement their market.
Another topic I'd like to touch on briefly is one of reseru:ch and development, which you
mentioned in your opening remarks.
remain competitive.

This has so far been the only edge that farmers have had to

I believe that it's extremely important for the State to aid and assist in the

development of biotechnology and research of new equipment, equipment such as the Bug Vac, and
some of the other equipment that has been developed by private concerns. I think that if the State is
so concerned about pesticide use and so concerned about taking these pesticides off the market, that
it really needs to assist the farmer in producing a product that will allow them to use it and not take
away the tools that they need necessary to do their jobs. There can be many, many questions that
will be answered for agriculture through the use of biotechnology.

In conclusion, there is really no conclusion.

The battles will be ongoing; the problems will

always be there; and the farmers will continue to do their best. I believe that what they really need
is more representation.

They are, by comparison, a very small group whose voice is often

outnumbered by the many constituents who do not thoroughly understand what is at stake.
I urge you to .listen to these people today and to carry their messages back to Sacramento.
Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Thank you very much, Sherry.

Sherry mentioned Bug Vac and I just

wanted to tell Jim that's a new hope. Have you and Senator Vuich heard about it?
MR. COLUN": I've seen it in Farm Magazine.
CH.Am.MAN MELLO:

Yeah. Well, Tim Driscoll's here and he's going to be telling us about it

also. Let me also say that the meeting is being recorded and there will be a transcript made of the
meeting which will be delivered to every Member of the Legislature as well as being available for
people in the food and agricultural industry, as weil as in the Department of Food and Ag.
Okay. Next we have Sharan Lanini, is here, President of the California Women in Agriculture.
When they come to Sacramento, they make a tremendous impact, I can tell you that. So welcome to
our hearing this morning.
MS. SHARAN A. LANINI: Thank you, Senator Mello, and I'd like to thank all three Senators on
behalf of the Salinas Valley Chapter of CWA for inviting us to testify this morning.
There are many issues that are of concern to our local growers here in the Monterey
County/Salinas Valley area. Today I chose to deal wi.th just two of these issues and focus on those.
Montery County, as was · stated earlier, is an agricultural county. · The number one industry in
Monterey County is agriculture as it is in the State of California.
I would urge the Senators and some of the departments, like the California Department nf
Food ;uui Ag, to take a more proactive (noise} •.•
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Oh-oh.
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THE SERGEANT: We're going to try to get rid of that squealing there but I can't •••
MS. LANINI:

Again, I would urge the Senators and some of the Departments involved with

agriculture, such as CDF A, to follow some of the industry lead and take a more proactive stance in
promoting California Agriculture. We at CWA often take the proactive role. And some examples of
this are our recent statewide project, Supermarket Saturday, where chapters throughout the State of
California were present in supermarkets, predominantly in urban areas, on one Saturday in July
answering consumer questions, talking to the consumers, and specifically dealing with issues in the
local area. Our chapter was over at the Carmel Safeway.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Sharan, can you tell what kind of questions did the consumers ask you

during these visits?
MS. LANINI:

Well, we kind of draw them out.

We also are involved over at the Monterey

County Fair. We have a booth and we talk to consumers.
Their basic questions are about food safety, about not really knowing how the crops are
produced in Monterey County. They drive by all the time but they're not really that aware of what
really goes into production.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: That bears out what I say about my colleagues from Los Angeles. I keep
saying they think that water comes from a faucet and food comes from Safeway.
MS. LANINI: And milk comes from a carton and grocery stores.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MS. LANINI: Again, we have had other problems that our local chapter has recently dealt with,
one of which was trying to present some facts and a workshop on our pesticides to the Soledad City
Council who recently passed a resolution supporting Cesar Chavez and his efforts to ban the use of
pesticides on domestically grown fruits and vegetables.
We, with Dick Nutter, presented a workshop to these people to try and eliminate some of the
misinformation and eliminate some of the fears of these people down in the Soledad area. Likewise,
CWA actively monitors local, state, and national legislation and policy decisions.
Regarding food safety and biotechnology, some appalling examples of recent bad PR for
agriculture and the disastrous results that ensued are a local ordinance in Monterey County which
severely limits the testing of bioengineered organisms and the current national media blitz on Food
Safety. California's produce is clean, safe, and nutritious. And the consumer is being duped by scare
tactics and misinformation by private testing organizations and some stores who are merely taking
advantage of a slick marketing ploy of the food safety issue.
More regulations are needed on labs testing residues of pesticides and stiffer certification
requirements are needed on these private labs to allow standardization in testing in line with current
CDF A standards.

CDF A's residue testing is currently regarded as the state-of-art technology, in

terms of number of samples, accuracy of samples, and residue technology. This message should be
taken to the consumer by the Department, and you have an excellent representative, Dr. Bill Cusick
who is the Chief Chemist with CDF A.
In regards to biotechnology, I'd like to read from an editorial by Larry Waterfield, the editor of
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The Packer:
"The growing chemo-phobia is spurring private industry development of hie-pesticides that
promise to replace many broad-sector chemical pesticides. The hie-pesticides are safe and natural.
Biotechnology is proving to be both powerful and safe ••••
"The Congressional Clearinghouse on the Future estimates by the year ZOOO, biotechnology
could be a $100-billion business worldwide.
"For the produce industry, the new technology promises to defuse many of the food safety
problems."
Likewise, I would urge the Senators to tighten up the regulations within CDFA to better define
the limits of CDFA jurisidiction regarding biotechnology so that the key agricultural areas, like
Monterey County, do not get left behind in this new and exciting area of biotechnology research and
development.

In conclusion, CWA is concerned by overregulation in many areas of agriculture; and
specifically with such issues of current concern is:

animal rights, trade policy, taxies, land use,

water, and the imports of competitive ag products from other parts of the world.
We would hope that ag industry, ag organizations such as CWA, and our legislators and
governmental agencies could all work together more closely in !he future to help maintain both
Monterey County and California's position as leaders in agriculture now and in the future. Thank you
very much.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Sharan, thank you and thank CWA for the presentation this morning. All
right.

Next, we're going to call Mr. Richard Nutter, the Agricultural Commissioner for Monterey

County. Let me point out that he was a Deputy Agricultural Commissioner from Santa Cruz County
and he got pirated away over to Monterey. But I'm happy that he's serving in our area here. He could
have gone over to Tulare County and we would have lost him.
COMMISSIONER RICHARD W. NUTTER: That was about 18 years ago.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: That's right. (Laughter)
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: I do have a copy of my presentation for you. I have a presentation
on a couple of topics and I'd like to read my presentation.
Good morning, Senator Mello, and Members of the Comm.ittee.

Thank you for providing the

opportunity for me to express some concerns regarding problems facing agriculture.
My name is Richard Nutter and I'm the Agricultural Commissioner of the County of Monterey,
but today I'm speaking on behalf of the California Agricultural Commissioners Association and
Sealers Association.
There are two areas in which I'd like to address. Both have statewide implications but both are
important concerns here within your district.
The first issue involves

~unding

for County Agricultural Commissioners' programs.

As you

might recall, County Agricultural Commissioners celebrated their centennial year back in 1981, and
during the rHcognition of the long term of service to county agriculture it was

at~ knuwlt~dged

many

times that the County Agricultural Commissioner system, which is unique to California, has had a
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major role in the development and continued productivity of California agriculture. Throughout our
efforts, dealing with county, state, and federal officials, many potential serious pest problems were
averted and new pest introductions prevented by lobbying for strong plant quarantine measures.
In addition, we were instrumental in commencing controls for pesticide use long before state

and federal laws and regulations provided mandates.

My purpose for providing a brief historical

review of the County Agricultural Commissioners is that we have a long history in providing
protection to California agriculture and are continuing to do so today.
We provide service to the agricultural industry under the direction of the Director of
Agriculture of the California Department of Food and Agriculture. And essentially, we are the field
force for this state department. Although we are county employees, the majority of the programs
that we are involved with are state programs.

Most are mandated but few have levels of service

required.
We depend upon funding from the County General Fund, contractual arrangements from the
CDF A and fee-supported industry programs. Since Prop 13, there have been fewer county dollars to
depend upon and we have addressed our needs through fees and contractual arrangements.
Several years ago, the County Agricultural Commissioners Association, the Department of Food
and Agriculture, and agricultural industry groups recognized that there was a three-way responsibility
for supporting funding for various activities. Recognizing that fact, legislation was passed that would
require the one-third, one-third, one-third concept of funding which would require participation of all
three parties. To date, that concept is in place, with the Nursery, Seed, and Apiary industries, plus
the county is providing their third. But to date, there has been no funds forthcoming from the State's
end of the bargain.
Each time CDF A requests a budget change proposal, it fails to survive the Finance
Department's review.

In addition, there are several other contractual arrangements with CDF A

dealing with Pesticide Use Enforcement, Nursery and Seed, Pest Exclusion and Detection, Egg
Quality Control, and Apiary. Most of these contractual arrangements are post Prop. 13 with major
contracts, such as Pesticide Use Enforcement and Pest Detection being initiated approximately in

1981.
Since these original contracts have been adopted, the economy has experienced an inflation rate
averaging approximately 5 percent annually. This would indicate that at least a minimum increase of
30-35 percent has taken place without the benefit of increased state financial support. This is having
a severe impact on the ability of County Agricultural Commissioners' staffs to respond in a timely
manner to the needs of agriculture. Whether it is to provide a pesticide permit for growers, issuing a
phytosanitary certificate for strawberries to Japan, inspect a seed shipment from South America, or
provide staff to protect our industry from infestation of exotic fruit flies, we are still required to
respond. Inadequate funding prevents timely response in many instances.
I am requesting that your Committee make a serious review of funding to counties, recognizing
the important services that are being provided, and help seek remedies for this very serious but
overlooked economic problem facing agriculture.
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That's the first part of my presentation and I have another portion just briefly and then I could
respond to any comments you might have.
My second topic deals with pesticides and pesticide residues.

Because of some very public

stances taken by prominent individuals, this issue has arisen, whether our food supply is safe.

My

purpose today is to address some of the steps that are being taken by county, state, and federal
agencies to assure a safe food supply for the consumers.
Three agencies have a primary responsibility for sampling for residues.

They are:

United

States Food and Drug Administration, California Department of Food and Agriculture, and the
County Agricultural Commissioners' offices.
The USFDA samples those products moving interstate at shipping point, while CDF A

s~mples

are at terminal markets, preharvest, and various other locations in the state.
The counties have entered into contra,cts with CDF A for various samples.

These are:

Preharvest samples that are taken at random in the fields prior to harvest; processing samples -these are samples of produce destined for a processor, freezer, or canner, and; focused samples,
which are samples to determine residues of specific pesticides that have been used on a crop.
During 1988, the Food and Drug Administration sampled 487 fruit and vegetable products from
Monterey County. 9 of the 487 samples exceeded the established !'esidue by EPA -- this was about
2 percent. These were on such crops as Endive, Escarole, Kale, Napa Cabbage, Romaine, and Butter

Lettuce. Trace amounts or below trace levels were found on other crops.
Monterey County has entered into a contractual arrangement with CDFA to provide 322
preharvest, processing, and focus-monitoring samples. To date, approximately 250 samples have been
drawn and analyzed at the CDFA laboratories, either in Berkeley or Sacramento, with no products
exceeding the authorized tolerance as found.
In addition, CDF A's market basket sampling in their routine program have found several
shipments that exceeded EPA's tolerance.

All were minor crops and similar to those mentioned

above.
Those materials that have been analyzed as overtolerance were generally registered on many of
our vegetable crops. But because of the small acreage of some of these commodities, no attempts
have been made by manufacturers to register them. In general, the residues found on minor crops
would not present a hazard to the public as they were allowable tolerances on other major, nearby
crops.
California~s

rigid pesticide permit program -- process -- along with surveillance and inspections

of pest control operators combined with broad spectrum sampling and analysis of food products, is
proof that California's system of protecting the public's food supply is unsurpassed anywhere in the
world. That concludes my comments.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Thank you very much, Mr. Nutter.
MR. COLUN: Is it on?
THE

SEH.l~EANT:

Yes.

MR. COLLIN: Okay. The question about the funding, Senator --
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COMMISSIONER NUTTER: Yes.
MR. COLLIN: -- my boss, Senator Vuich, sits on the Budget Committee and reviews Food and
Ag's budget. We were not aware of any requests for funding for ag commissioners on this one-third,
one-third you're speaking of. When was that arranged?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: That was, I think it was Assembly Bill Z513 or 14 back about three
or four years ago. And the reason you weren't aware of it, because it never gets out of the Finance
Committee Review before it goes over across the street. You know, if you can't see it, you're not
going to act on it.
MR. COLLIN: That's true.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

And that's the problem. And I think the Department's instruction

from the Governor's office is: We don't want to see any increases in budgets.

And so they're not

going over there asking for it.
MR. COLLIN: But that was signed by the Governor?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: That was signed by the Governor several years ago, yes, that whole
provision.
MR. COLLIN: Another question in particular about your area and the registration, you have a
lot of minor crops, we're seeing more of that in Tulare than in Fresno County. But the registration,
there's a program, like CDF A has, for registration of chemicals on minor crops?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: Well, there's the Federal IR-4 program-MR. COLLIN: Yes.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

that's operated by the university cooperation.

We do have a

minor crop committee in this county. We work closely with IR-4 and other indivi- -- is this cutting
out somehow?
MR. COLLIN: Yes, it's cutting in and out. But how does that program work?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

Well, actually, it requires funding and almost every year at the

federal level, they eliminate the funds for the IR-4 program and everybody has to go back in and try
to fight for the funds just for that unit to survive. It's ridiculous. If you're going to try to promote
products for minor crops in which there's no chemicals registered, you're going to have to allow funds.
It's that simple. And if manufacturers aren't willing to go ahead, someone is going to have to provide
a system to allow pests to be controlled on these particular commodities.
MR. COLLIN: So the format of the program is fine. It's just getting the funds to •••
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

Yeah, the format is fine.

It's the funds from the federal

government, and it also is a timely process but it's the only thing we have, and I think it's necessary
to continue and support.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Thanks, Jim, for your testimony.
MR. COLLIN: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Let me follow up on that and refresh my memory on what is the funding
formula? As I recall, it's some blank amount, so many thousand dollars goes to each county that hires
an Ag Commissioner?
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COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

Well, there's a couple of things. The State in their gesture pays

$6,600 a year for each County Ag Commissioner toward the salary. That was implemented back in
'57, I believe, and that's to try to deal with, promote uniformity between counties. But there are
other funds like pesticide use enforcement contract that were based on a criteria of the number of
restricted materials that were used back in about '79 or '80 and that criteria has not changed. And
obviously, there have been major changes in pesticide laws and regulations that those activities were
involved in since that time. It has not been recognized and it's very difficult to keep up on things
when we're trying to balance county dollars.

And when we're actually out there dealing with

enforcement of state programs -- and it gets to the point that persons like yourself who sit on
important committees aren't aware of these situations.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Yeah, let me point out that you're quite correct. What happens, many

times the Department of Finance is there sort of as a watchdog for the administration, regardless of
what the party it is. It's the same under a Democratic administration and Republican administration.
They try to throttle down any new or expanded expense program because it just means, you know,
more dollars so sometimes programs get killed right there before they even get before the
Legislature.

But the fact that Senator Vuich does sit on this Committee, one way to do that is to

bypass the budget process when it's introduced but add it to the budget as we deliberate the budget.
And I was just thinking, many counties where agriculture is not that significant, if we were to come
up with a formula based on the agricultural production in each county-- have sort of a sliding-scale
formula that we can reimburse counties based on the productivity of agriculture within that county.
And I'll be happy to work with Senator Vuich and Assemblyman Seastrand as well to try to see if we
can't make a change there. I mean it's just $6,600.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: That's just for the, you know, my salary; that's not the important
thing.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: That probably pays for your, part of your retirement.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

But the other point is that, when we have a cost-of-living

increase -- we're funding a program from the State and they're paying for the total program. But
then you have the increase in inflation.

You have cost-of-living increases.

Then when you get a

30 percent increase, we have to offset that increase, that 30 percent increase, by cutting some other
program at the county level to keep our programs going.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Yeah.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

One important step that was taken this past week, the Finance

Committee apparently agreed to some funding on ground water protection under, I think it was
Assembly Bill ZOZl,

that's all tied up with SB 950

and those concerns about ground water

contamination. So I think there'll be some funding to enforce those new provisions, but that's the new
laws and regulations that are coming in place and not the old ones we've been dealing with for many
years.
CHAIRMAN

MELLO:

Let me ask you a question:

Could you develop some kind of

recommendations to present to myself and Senator Vuich and others -- and we have Senator Maddy
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also who represents Monterey County, along with myself -- to call for the recommendation that we
could consider and try to add it into the budget somehow that would help increase the funding for
county commissioner, county agricultural commissioner activities?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

Yeah, as I mentioned, I'm representing our County Agricultural

Commissioners Association today and I'd be glad to take that back to them. I'm sure that we would
be glad to provide that •••
CHAmMAN MELLO:

I just recall some bills being introduced. But what happened, just like

what I said earlier, that when some of our more urban legislators-- you know, they don't realize the
importance of agriculture.

They're more urban area.

They're looking at transit housing and help

programs. And, you know, that's their priority so we have to try to let them know what ours are in
order to get some support from them.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: I'd just like to add, in general, that if people are really interested in
making sure that we're protecting the food supply.

By going to the consumers and also the

environment and the public welfare of the people, then I think it's a General Fund obligation and
perhaps some new ways to develop revenue needs to be examined.
CHAmMAN MELLO: Yeah. Your statistics here about the inspection program for pesticides is
very revealing in that the amount of tolerance that exceed the limits are, you know, as you point out,
about 2 percent but there still is some exceeding.

I think it's far less, and this is what we don't

realize, there's 1 million shipments a year of agricultural products coming into the United States,
over a hundred thousand shipments coming into the State of California. Less than 1 percent of them
are inspected. And we've had a lot of bills trying to reinforce California's ability to deal with the
inspection at the border and we are preempted, really, by the federal government under the
California U.S. Department of Agriculture. I guess our role is, once it's in a county, you can go down
to the local supermarket or somewhere that has products; and if they have exceeding levels of
tolerances, we can, you know, take action there.
The other thing I've heard is these trucks coming in from Mexico and Guatemala, they know
that the stations, inspection stations, are only open from 9:00 to 5:00, five days a week. So if they
have something that might have a high exposure, they just lay back and wait until the inspection
station closes; then they come across and all they have to face is the immigration office to come
across the border. And I think, personally, we just have to beef up our ability to control, and I don't
mean to eliminate the competition, even though I'd like to. But I think we have to use our efforts to
be able to monitor these products that not only exceed the limits that we allow here in California,
but they also have pesticides that we don't even allow in the State of California and by federal
government. Items that we banned several years ago are now being applied on products.
So through your association, any help you can give us in this regard, I think, will be really in the
public interest to make darn sure that these imports that come in meet, as a minimum, they meet the
standards that California farmers have to meet here within the State of California.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

I wonder if I might just clarify a point.

Those commodities I

mentioned, like the Endive and the Escarole, they are a very minor vegetable crop, Chinese
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vegetables and those sorts of things. They did

mentio~

that most of the time the materials that are

found on there that they call "illegal residues" can be allowed on a crop that's right next to them.
You might be allowed 25 parts per million on a head of lettuce that's sitting and growing a row over
from this crop. But if you have -- it's zero tolerance on the crop that's next to it. So while you can
eat it on this crop, it's illegal to have it on this other cr.op. And that's because of the research.
So the point that I was trying to make is that,

alt~ough

you might find residue on those

particular crops, it doesn't present a human health hazard because it's allowable on many other crops.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Yeah.

I was under the impression that the pesticide, once applied,

gradually, you know, vaporizes or ...
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: They do break down, yes.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Over a period of time and only some rare cases do they not do that. But
these cases that were found, were they because of the applications made just prior to harvest?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER:

Most of the time, it was either inadvertent drift from the

neighboring crop or it wasn't a direct application. It could have been a contaminated tank mix from
the pesticide applicator.

I'm not aware of any particular instances we've had in this county where

there's been a direct, illegal application, a knowing application of a product that was not registering
that particular material.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay, Rich, and thanks again. Oh, Rick, you have a question?
MR. RICK WEISBERG: I just wanted to ask one quick question. I just wanted to make certain
that I understand correctly, is it under section ZZSZ of the Food and Agriculture Code that provides
for the one-third, one-third, one-third split?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: Yes.
MR. WEISBERG: Now is what you're saying that the State has not contributed anything?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: Actually, what is happening, we've entered contractual agreements
with the State but the money they're paying us is the money that they have assessed the industry.
For instance, the nursery licensing fee is distributed through the Department back to the county. The
fees that the seed companies pay for inspection and their license is distributed back to the county and
the

s~me

way with the apiary law provisions. Those things are all, even though there are assessments

on those particular industries, they are all through the Department.

So the Department is not

budgeted any funds to fund those particular programs.
MR. WEISBERG: So ·that's how they're meeting the authorization under ZZSZ?
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: That's right, yeah.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

I've heard

~ome

concerns from growers, I guess, because of being

strapped for enough funding, of charging fees for inspection and for other services, you know, to the
producers. And I guess that's where you get a lot of your revenue to run the Department as well.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: We have, but in this county, I think that we've been in contrast to,
not to criticize another neighboring county, but I know that a neighboring county has fees that are
about four or five times higher than ours.

We've had people move on the other side of the line

because Monterey County's fees are less than that particular county, which will remain nameless.
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(Laughter)
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Wow, let me see. Well, we have the Pacific Ocean, Santa Cruz, and San
Benito. (Laughter) There are only three neighboring towns, I guess. San Luis Obispo.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: Yeah, Santa Cruz County.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Santa Cruz County. Well, Rod, you're here to defend Santa Cruz County
so •••

Okay. Do we have any further questions?
MR. WEISBERG: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Rich? Thank you.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah, we'll look forward to working very closely with you. I think two or
more points that you made with funding for the Department was one; secondly, how we can help with
this pesticide inspection is very important. And I know the Legislature is very concerned about it.
The problem with people that represent the areas not in agriculture, they're solution is, you know,
just a ban on the use of pesticides instead of trying to regulate the use, as you've done here in
Monterey County with monitoring and posting and experimentation.

I've always said wasting

pesticide on the crop hurts the farmer more than anybody because these pesticides are not cheap and
the more you put on there, it's costing you out of your own pocket, you know, if you put on excessive
amounts beyond the level that you need to control the pests. But there are a lot of people that don't
understand it.

They think the farmers are just -- if a little bit is good, then a lot more is a lot

better. They just think they're putting a lot of pesticides on crops to try to have better control.
Also, there was another poll released recently where people were interviewed-- maybe Sharan,
I thought this was going to be something she was going to comment on. But the poll showed that a
high percentage of people are willing to have, you know, a little, slight defect on commodities as a
trade-off for having a lot of pesticides or other types of dangerous chemicals.

So I think that's

another point. I hate to think we're going to sacrifice the quality and appearance.

But I mean if

that's what it takes to, you know, draw a better balance there, certainly we have to look at it.
COMMISSIONER NUTTER: Well, they said: Would you rather find a half a worm? (Laughter)
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Next we have James Bogart from the

Grower-Shipper Vegetable Association. We welcome you here this morning.
MR. JAMES BOGART: Thank you.

Good morning. My name is Jim Bogart. I'm an attorney

with the Grower-Shipper Vegetable Association of Central California and I was asked to come here
today and address the topic of Workers' Compensation as it affects agriculture.

And I want to

preface my remarks with acknowledging that I know the Legislature's been grappling with this
problem; but unfortunately, we're still saddled with a system here that has some severe defects in it
that we feel needs at least addressing if not resolution.
The speakers that'll follow me-- I know Tom Merrill is going to speak to you about the
difficulty in competing in the Salinas Valley with respect to imports and the cost of doing business in
producing and harvesting and marketing fresh vegetables. And workers' compensation is a significant
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cost factor which burdens agriculture in this valley and throughout this state.

And we feel that

something needs to be done promptly because premiums in the produce industry have increased some
80 percent in the last three years and this is all a part of an employer's cost of doing business.
I can recite to you several horror stories, which I'm sure you've heard ad nauseam.

But as a

couple of examples, I was just talking to one of my clients this morning who is not a large company in
the Salinas Valley. And his workers' compensation costs approach a half a million dollars each year.
Another member of ours, and a client of mine, laid off a green onion harvesting crew over in
Bakersfield. The crew was comprised of approximately 300 workers. The very next day, 2.75 of those
300 filed workers'. comp claims for back injuries.
I want to address •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO: On what grounds did they file a claim?'
MR. BOGART:

Well, just back injuries, trauma, cumulative trauma, things like that.

Sometimes it seems like just about anybody can for any reason.

And the problem -- there are four

main problems or things that I want to address here.
The first that I feel needs to be addressed by the Legislature, or anybody who can do something
about this, is the cost of litigation because I believe that the research that I've done indicates, for
example, Bill Ramsey, who's here today representing Mann Packing Company, in his company,
57 percent of all workers' comp claims that are filed are litigated. And it's been proven statistically
that the longer that these comp cases linger and are not resolved, the probability of litigation goes
up.

So by the end of this year, I wouldn't be surprised if Bill Ramsey's company was litigating

75 percent of his compensation claims.

And with the litigation comes the cost associated with

litigation. And I guess I should state thclt, as an attorney, you know, it somewhat pains me to make
remarks. I think I should, half the time, I should be up here arguing that, you know, lawyers are good
things, and they are. But this litigation that's become associated with workers' comp is just driving
these employers crazy. So I think that the cost of litigation under the present workers' compensation
system has to be addressed,
The second area is stress claims. We have a lot of employees injured on the job in this valley
who are filing stress claims. And there has been a significant increase, as I'm sure you're aware, in
the number of stress claims that have been filed under the workers' compensation law. Now I'm not
saying that nobody's entitled to compensation for stress and job-related stress.
somebody severely as a physical injury.

It can affect

The difficulty is that it's so hard to measure.

broken arm or a cut hand is something that is tangible.

You know how to treat it.

I mean a

But a stress-

related injury is far more difficult to ascertain and identify. Because of that it's litigated as a result
because reasonable minds will differ on whether, for example, a broccoli cutter can be stressed out.
There are a lot of claims that are tacked on dealing with stress on the job. And I'll tell you that in
my experience, I've seen a lot of workers' comp claims filed immediately following a disciplinary
action that's been imposed on the employee because of the humiliation that the employee suffers by
being suspended or fired from his job. It's work-related stress. I see that as a problem or at least an
issue that certainly needs to be looked into.
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CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay. Let me ask you a question in that regard. You mentioned several
times the number of cases that were filed and the number of cases litigated. How many awards were
made on these claims? Do you have any figures?
MR. BOGART:

I wouldn't have any figures.

I'm sure there are statistics that can be cited

somewhere. I think my concern and our association's concern and our members' concern is not just,
well, gee, were they awarded compensation for stress? But the cost associated with litigating that
whole issue is what's eating the employers alive.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah. If you could develop some information, and could send it to us, we
would appreciate it. It's pretty hard to stop people from filing an action.
MR. BOGART: That's certainly not your •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

I know that.

But I mean we quite often cite that as the number of

activity but, you know, you can file, but the number of people that gain an award from the result of
filing, it really shows, whether or not the decision was made in their favor or not.

And I think

that's -- granted, it does cost to defend filing a litigation but when the claim is awarded, that's
probably even a much greater cost if they do get an award.
MR. BOGART: I'm sure it is.
The third item I'd like to address is the permanent- and partial-disability awards.

And one of

the major problems, as we see it, in the permanent/partial disability is that benefits are payable
regardless of the actual ability to compete in the •••
CHAffiMAN MELLO: You want to keep-- Spencer?
MR. SPENCER TYLER: It's an automatic system and there seems to be no control.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Yeah.

I guess it has a voice-actuated volume and we're not blaming

Phyllis Price who's on the City Council. (Laughter)
MS. PHYLLIS PRICE-MEURER: I'll go get some help.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: I think -- the main thing, I think it's coming through okay. And is it all
right on our machine? The main thing is that we hear you here and also get it on tape so we can
reproduce it on the transcript. So I think it's coming through okay, and we hope to read about it in
the local press. We do have some members of the press here and so if they have a problem, please let
us know because we want to-- if there is a way to improve it, Spencer, we'll ask you to try to do it.
MR. BOGART: One of the major problems that we see with permanent/partial disability is that
the benefits are payable regardless of the employees' actual ability to compete in the open labor
market. Benefits are payable in cases where the injured worker continues to perform the same job as
before the injury.
And a second problem associated with that is that the pain and other subjective rating factors
have more precedent than objective rating factors, such as measuring the rate of strength or
flexibility.

And there's disagreements over these subjective issues and therefore they're litigated,

and the costs associated with workers' comp therefore increase. So I think we need to take a look at
that.
The final area is that of vocational rehabilitation and it's my understanding that when the
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mandatory rehabilitation law was adopted in 1974, they estimated that the cost of a vocational rehab
would represent about 3 percent of benefit costs. And my research is, for me, that cost, rather than
3 percent is 12 percent of benefit costs from the vocational rehabilitation area. And employees don't
receive any savings in the permanent/partial disability award as a result of implementing a successful
rehabilitation program. And, for example, a broccoli cutter who earns, say, $12 per hour and has four
or five years of primary education as a monolingual, speaks only Spanish, has been injured on the job
and has to be trained, and rightly so, to become a productive member of society.

The problem,

though, is that, again, with Mann Packing Company, through their vocational rehabilitation program,
because of these limitations with language and educational background, they, through vocational
rehabilitation, have trained people to open restaurants in Mexico, to own a small dairy farm in
Mexico, and even become a hairdresser in Mexico.

And that's just, it doesn't seem right to me that

you train somebody, through the workers' compensation law, to go work in Mexico. And plus, you'll
get the same •.•
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Well, it still draws benefits. That's what you'r saying.
MR. BOGART: That's right.
CH.A IRMAN MELLO: That's what you're stating.
MR. BOGART:

That's right.

So those are the four areas that we feel are necessary to have

some type of reform or implementation. And I want to make it clear that Grower-Shipper Vegetable
Association and employers who represent them are in favor of workers' compensation. But when this
law was enacted, it was supposed to be a no-fault system. I mean there wasn't supposed to be any
litigation, trials and courts and lawyers. I mean it's supposed to compensate employees injured on the
job, and it hasn't worked out that way. And the costs associated with the system are increasing and
increasing at a rapid rate and makes it more difficult for agricultural employers in this state, and
particularly in this valley, to compete. And it's all part of the cost of doing business. So that would
conclude my remarks.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Thank you, Jim. I just sent out for my briefcase where I do have some
information there on workers' comp that I distribute. I think you or Grower-Shipper has a copy. What
this is is a 50-state comparison of worker compensation state laws, in all 50 states. And it's a guide
that we look at up there in Sacramento, and California has the highest workers' comp rate, as you
know.

But we also have the lowest payment to the injured worker of temporary benefits and

permanent benefits. It's really a .mystery to see how you could put more money into the program and
end up with less coming out.
You've touched on some of the things that I've been concerned about, and that is, I think we
should offset, number one, for persons eligile for benefits, and that determination is made. But then
if they're ahle tu go ahead and reenter employment or go into business, the amount of the benefits

that they're getting from workers' comp should -- deductions should be made from that after the
future earning capacity-- so that they're not really paying. It's double dipping. If we pay them, say,
$2.5,000 a year for the injury, and they go out and make $30,000 a year on the outside, they're making
$55,000 which I don't think is the intent of the insurance. Just like unemployment, people are out of
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a job; we want to protect their income level. But if you go out and work and make more, then, of
course -- I don' t know if you have a recent one but you're certainly welcome.
MR. BOGART: Yeah, I'd like a copy.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: This is as of January 1, 1987, so I do have-- have you seen this before?
Let's see. We could get -- let's see. rll give one to Jim.
Give him the copy and there's only a few. But if anybody wants to have it, just contact our
Salinas office or Monterey office and we'll be happy to make them available. Those are compiled and
it's got every state, you know, what the weekly benefit is, for temporary and for permanent injured,
and we have wrestled with this problem in Sacramento, trying to figure out ways to streamline the
system. I just mentioned, you know, the offsetting would be one. I think the stress-related-- almost
everything we do in life is stressful. Even watching a football game could be stressful if your team is
losing. But I'm just thinking, if a determination can be made that, you know, some stress relationship
is justified based on the findings, then, you know, it's meritorious. But I just have a suspicion that a
lot of those claims that are made and awarded are very skeptical as to how meritorious they are.
Okay, Jim, thank you very much.
MR. BOGART: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay. Bill Ramsey, who is referred to here and also a person who comes
in with a lot of good information from the Mann Packing Company, will follow Mr. Bogart because he
can speak with firsthand knowledge on this workers' compensation issue, as you have to me many
times in the past. We sure appreciate your coming here this morning, Bill.
MR. BILL RAMSEY: Senator Mello, thank you very much for coming to Salinas once again. It's
always nice to see you again here and in Sacramento. I was here a year ago and we talked about the
same things that we are interested in today. Can you hear me?
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. RAMSEY: It almost seems redundant for me to stand here after I hear Jim talk about my
company and you talk about the statistics that you just talked about, so let me reiterate what you
just said.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Well, I hope that you can shed some light on how we can ...
MR. RAMSEY:

I don't know how I can when I see Senators Maddy, Roberti, Governor

Deukmejian, Willie Brown all get together on the subject of workers' comp.

Not more than two

months ago, thinking they could come together. In the final analysis, what happened was nothing. So
we can talk as though there's a mystery but I wonder if there is a mystery or whether there's a
reluctance to do anything about the problem.
An example, Jim talks about my company, about the 57 percent. And all companies, you know,
you could echo my company by all the various companies in this business, But getting back to what
we're just talking about, we have 57 percent of our claims litigated, it's suspected that we'll have 75
percent, and that will be true of all of these companies. And we as an employer are not guilty of
shortchanging our employees. We're paying more than any state in the United States and ...
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Bill, let me ask you, no doubt that is higher than the industry. And have
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you found out any reasons why? Is there anything that you might shed some light on why you •••
MR. RAMSEY: About litigation?
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. RAMSEY:

I don't really know.

And maybe, to tell you the truth, I wish I knew.

because my employees are here year-round and they know the system?
injured, you get legal advice.

Is it

The system is, if you get

Chances are, the rumor is, the thought is perhaps you'll get more

money out of it. The fact of the matter is they do not. The fact of the matter is there's only so
much money set aside and the Applicant Attorney is paid out of whatever claim they made from that
set-aside.
But the point of it all is I really don't care to go into the specific problems of my organization
so much as I'd like to talk about the cost of doing business in California. I can tell you that I shipped
some premium cartons of broccoli and I spent almost a million dollars last year in workers' comp.
And I can tell you that equates to 30 cents a carton, and that's a lot of money. How much is 30 cents
a carton? Is it too much? Yes, it is. What should it be? I don't know. But something's wrong when
the employers in the State of

C~ifornia

pay the rates that they pay and the employee when injured,

however they are injured, get the amount of claims that they get and they're the fourth or fifth
lowest in the United States and we are the highest in the United States.

Something is wrong and

there can't be a mystery. There cannot be a mystery. There's got to be an answer and I feel and I
fear that the answer is in changing the law and in reforming it, and I fear that the influence of those
who capitalize on the system are such that that influence is substantial and a reform is not
forthcoming.
So my encouragement, of course, on the subject of workers' comp, would be to continue, no
matter how disfavorable it is and how distasteful it is, continue to see the reform in this program so
that certainly the employer, and I speak for him today as I do the employees -- I have a lot of them;
that's how I make my living-- so that we do something for both parties.

The process perhaps of

Applicant Attorneys in the medical field will somehow see fit to back off or at least understand the
problem of those of us who put the money up and those - of us who receive the benefits as a
consequence of injury.
The second problem, the one of imports, as you know, I've been to the State of California and
I've been to Washington and I've

tal~ed

with you.

And by the way, on behalf of all the efforts that

you've put forth for agriculture in Salinas Valley, I'd like to compliment you. Many of these people
don't know just exactly what you do.

But you, as recently as two months ago, arranged a meeting

with Senator Roberti and some of us in Sacramento to talk about some of these problems. So just
publicly, I'd like to thank you very much for that effort.
CHAmMAN MELLO: Thank you.
MR. RAMSEY: And it does not go unnoticed.
CHAmMAN MELLO: We're trying to get him to change from a Los Angeles •••
MR. RAMSEY: ••• red brick and a white brick. If you separate it, it doesn't get discolored; but
if we could rub them together a little bit, there's a little blood in that red brick and there will be a
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little red with white brick so it all works out.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. RAMSEY: We appreciate your efforts. On the area of imports in the United States, you
know the problem. You never talked about the problem today. So I'm here today just to enforce, to
reemphasize, encourage you, the State of California, to do whatever is reasonably, is reasonable for
the State of California agriculture in this state with regard to the pesticide problems and the
restrictions that we are bound by, and rightfully so, that is, the law of the land but only to ensure
that, if that is the case, the protection of the consumer in California and the worker in California,
how can it be less important for products coming in from foreign countries into this country? And I
know that the State of California does not have the capacity to do what the federal government does
and I know that Governor Deukmejian just recently vetoed a bill that would have brought labeling into
products in the State of California. And I'm disappointed that that happened but you can be sure that
even though I'm a redneck Republican and I happen to disagree with the Governor in view of this case,
I'll be back talking with him once again about that.

And I'm sure that will come before the

Legislature in 1989, at least I hope it will.
So what I came today to do is to thank you very much for having this program and allowing
people like myself to come up and reiterate those things that we have talked about for many years.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Bill, thank you very much. When you said how the Governor vetoed the
bill, it reminded me of a bill I had dealing with net operating loss carried forth for agriculture and he
vetoed it three times. The only thing is I didn't quit and we let him know we're coming back again.
And low and behold, he was giving a speech up in Redding and he said, "Well, I'm ready to support this
bill allowing farmers to carry their net operating loss forward," so what that means is you can't -sure, you're disappointed when they veto the bill but I think you just have to come back again and try
to deal, you know, find out what the concerns are so they can put it in the kind of shape that he can
sign.
Let me just go down a few issues of this workers' comp issue because I have looked into it a lot.
It's a mystery because it looks like the money is -- it's almost like a gambling casino in Las Vegas
where they skim money off the top and it disappears, but I'm not saying that's the case here. People
say, well, the attorney fees. Looking at the attorney fees, represented by Applicant Attorneys, and
there's two pots, some of the claims are paid without litigation and some require litigation. They get
about 15 percent from the pot where litigation is developed.

But overall, they're getting about

8 percent of the total workers' compensation dollar. That's a figure I had as of about six months ago.
The doctor fees run substantially higher than that where there is injury and payments made to
doctors are high, coupled with hospital costs. Those two added together represent the largest amount
of expenses paid for by workers' compensation insurance.
The other one is rehabilitation, trying to rehabilitate the injured worker to get him back into
the job and get him back into production.

Those that are in the category of temporary injured is

another, it's a smaller amount. And then the portion that goes to the injured worker, the claimant, is
another amount. Of course, that is far less than it is in the other states. And so in order to make
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this system more efficient, I think we have to deal in all the categories. Well, first of all, I think the
claimant, the injured worker, we should try to bring up that amount to a more representative amount
paid for in other states; but try to eliminate as best we can what I call "people who are working the
system" through claims that are stress-related but they're not job related or it doesn't impair the
worker to perform their job duty as evidenced, why they're able to go out and do other work.

And

this happened right here in Salinas, for an example, a city manager a few years ago told me about
firemen who were injured in the line of duty received a permanent disability and they were getting,
you know, about $30,000 a year and then they're out doing another job.

They're perfectly able to

carry on even a more strenuous job, make another $30,000 a year. And the city manager is saying, "Is
there any way we can, you know, not have to pay for this injury which really, as evidenced by their
ability to go out and get another job, is not impairing that person's ability to earn?" I think that's one
of the areas we really have to cut back on.

And also, look at the attorney fees, look at the health

costs by both the doctor and the hospitals to see whether or not there can be a better turnaround or
better way of the delivery system, to try to improve the rehabilitation program that really targets
persons who are impaired but might be able to be retrained for some other duty and then get him off
the benefits so they can be self-sufficient.
So I think it's not just one area. At one time, I thought, well, if we can just deal with one area,
we're going to help solve the problem. Right now, we have to deal, I think, in the whole scope of
workers' comp and it has to be reform and possibly maybe come up with, like we're talking (noise) -what happened?
THE SERGEANT: The name plates fell.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: That's okay. Don't worry about that. Also, we have to deal with-- thank
you -- ways in which the rehabilitation will work and have a major overhaul of the program. I think
that's what we have to be looking for, is dealing with the entire p:-ogram and deal with it in a way
where it's going to be cost effective, and worker benefits will be relative to their ability to work.
And then hopefully, this can lead to a reduction of premiums by making the system more efficient.
MR. RAMSEY:

If you remember, I was very careful not to point a finger at the Applicant

Attorneys' fees nor at the doctors' fees simply because if there's something wrong, the employer is
doing his share and the employer is not getting the benefits and our costs on what we want them to
be.

It is a problem, though-- and what we ought to do is come up with a program to make people

well, a "well" program, something to encourage people to be well and not to be ill.

It's a problem

when, today, you can, through these benefits, received some $228, I believe, with the prospect of it
going up to as high as $400 because the encouragement to work is not there; the encouragement not
to work is there, for those who can take advantage of the system.
So I just encourage you, and I know that you will, along with the rest of the Legislature of 1989
to move forward on some area of reform on this issue. Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:
~

Yeah.

There's one more area that I think you're well aware of and

llucerueu about, as is most of the industry, and that's one of safety and mere prevention of getting a

better safety program in all of our businesses so we can cut down the incident of injuries by having,
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where it is possible, of having safeguards in and around equipment and also to have good education
programs entrusting worker safety. And I think in the long term, that will have an impact on the
accident rate.
MR. RAMSEY:

Employers have their share of responsibility and it's important that we are

forced to make sure that happens. We know the problems; we all know the problems. We can't walk
away from them. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Thank you very much, Bill. I always appreciate your remarks.
All right.

Now another person who's equally versed on these issues, Tom Merrill, owner of

Merrill Farms. And Tom, again, is honoring us by being here, as he has so many times in the past.
MR. TOM MERRILL: Senator, thank you. We do thank you for this opportunity to present our
views and I would like to address mainly the competitive features of agricultural and the differences
that agriculture has from other segments of our economy, the different concerns that we have.
Our industry must compete on a national and international -- in the international market and
the national market in order to survive.

We have to compete qualitywise and pricewise, with

agriculture producers in other states and other nations, with other nations having much different
costs and much different governmental restrictions. And we're quite a bit different than a service
industry who really has to deal with the local market. I'd like to emphasize the fact that we have to
compete with other states. At times we think our policy makers from Sacramento and Washington
lose sight of the fact that we do have to compete with other states and they pass regulations and laws
that seriously hurt our competitive position.
California is the largest agricultural state in the nation but, as you all recognize, our politics
are pretty well controlled by the metropolitan areas. And we feel that agriculture doesn't have the
clout, the political clout, in this state that it should have and it really doesn't have the influence in
state government that it does in what we call the "traditional farm states". California is the largest
farm state but percentagewise of the total economy, we're not really that major a factor.
The workers' comp thing has been pretty well discussed and I don't want to go into that much
more. But I would like to point out that the workmen's comp rate for vegetable farming in California
is a little over 10 percent of the gross payroll.

And in Arizona, which is one of our principal

competing states, that rate is slightly over 5 percent.

So we're almost double in California for

vegetable farming. The stated workmen's comp rate for California is virtually double what it is in
the State of Arizona, and I'm sure this is true, percentagewise, with the livestock producers which I
believe has a higher rate than does truck farming.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Tom, let me ask you a question in that regard. I found a similar situation
dealing, I think over in Watsonville, with apples and it seems like they were grouping us with a
commodity group that actually didn't make sense to me.

And I'm just asking you the question, the

fact that we're twice as high as Arizona, what do you attribute that to?

Are we in a group of -- is

that just the vegetable production?
MR. MERRILL: I really don't know why there is that big a differential. I do know that it is -we operate in Arizona as well as California and our rates are virtually double but •••
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CHAIRMAN MELLO: If we can find that through, maybe through Grower-Shipper or some, or
maybe Jim could check that out. I think this could be helpful in Sacramento. We can petition the
workers' comp to make sure that we're compared with, you know, apples and apples and not apples to
oranges by being put in a group that has a higher injury rate that really is not relevant to the grouping
that we should be in.
MR. MERRILL:

Yes, and I agree with what you said about the safety factors that we need to

work on, a good safety program.

And I would like to point out that this, the circular that was

presented to the audience here, was January 1987, and our rates have gone up 2.0 percent since that
time. So this is a certain amount of time out of date and I think we need to keep, be aware of what
the current situation is. And as I understand it, our rates are probably going to go up again the first
of January again.
But we feel that, we think that these negotiations that are going on in Sacramento, the
employer groups and the employee groups, should have the most to say.

We think that the trial

lawyers and the rehabilitation medical specialists have too much influence in our workmen's
compensation insurance system.
employee groups.

It should be negotiated between the employer groups and the

And like you said, we are paying among the highest rates in the nation; and still,

the benefits received by our employees are well below the average of the nation. So we would like to
see that, and hopefully this reform that has been going on in the Legislature, or this effort to reform,
which has been going on for several years-- we feel it needs your personal attention and we hope in
the next session of this Legislature this can come about.
I think one thing that should be looked into, and I'm not really an expert on workmen's comp, but
I understand that there is no penalty for a person filing an untruthful or fraudulent claim. And it
seems like when somebody can just say well, why not give it a try, you know, there's no penalty for
fraud or deceit in filing these claims and I think that should be looked into because most everything
else, if we commit perjury or something like that, there is some penalties involved. And I think that
should be looked into very strongly.

And I think, like you say, the subject has been pretty well

covered this morning and I appreciate the support that you have given me personally and given
agriculture in the many issues that we have before the Legislature and I hope that this, in the next
session, that this workmen's comp thing can be effectively dealt with. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay. Thank you very much, Tom. We certainly will try to get back, I
mean this ought to be a priority issue again this year and let's get all the groups together to start
negotiating early. I think we can probably come up with something. If there's a willingness, and I'm
sure there is, because the present system doesn't really make sense.
MR. CHUCK OVERFELT: Senator Mello.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Sir, I think Mr. Ron Tyler is next.
MR. OVERFELT: Oh, okay.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: He's going to have to leave so -- what wa.c; your name, sir?
MR. OVERFELT: Chuck Overfelt. I'm right behind Ron.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay. Okay. Chuck Overfelt.
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MR. RON TYLER: Good morning. rm Ron •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

You're from Santa Cruz County so let's hear why we're doing all these

things.
MR. TYLER: The high fees? (Laughter) rm Ron Tyler, Farm Advisor, and there's just a couple
of issues that I would like to request that you1 through the Legislature* might help to alleviate the
problems. One is the matter of nitrates and ground water and the need for further research by the
university and other agencies such as DWR to develop programs that might alleviate the situation,
techniques to match nitrogen fertilization to crop requirements and therefore reduce or prevent
these nitrogen losses below the root zone.
The other issue is one that Dick Nutter alluded to earlier on the registration of agricultural
chemicals here in California and the fact that our chemical company has to go through a dual
registration both at the federal level and the state level. And our problem of getting registration of
chemicals for minor crops, which is a particular problem here in the central coast. I would like to
encourage the Legislature to work with the CDF A to perhaps match up a program similar to the
federal IR-4 or work at least more closely with it to get us these registrations on minor crops. As
Dick pointed out, unfortunately, every year, we have to do battle with the federal level to restore
those monies in the budget. It's been going on for many years.

It seems that's the one that they

throw out every year and somehow we manage to get it back in but it's always a constant battle, and
yet it is an essential program, particularly to this central coast area. There are a lot of materials
I

being developed that fit into our integrated pest management ·programs and we need these tools to
back up our other cultural and biological control methods. That's all I have to say. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Yeah, thank you, Ron. Let me ask you a question about the nitrates in

the ground water. It would seem to me-- I don't know how extensive or how much information you
have.

Monterey County and Santa Cruz, I think, are doing some monitoring, Walter Wong from the

Environmental Health, and I think we're doing some over in Santa Cruz as well.

Are there local

programs in place that need some state help in order to expand the scope of the state monitoring?
MR. TYLER: Well, the monitoring is being done in both of these counties; however where I'm
particularly concerned is that we do a better job of researching our techniques of using nitrogen to
avoid the problem or to at least reduce the problem. This will take additional monies.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: What are we talking about? The money from the state or in some way •••
MR. TYLER: Either augmenting the University of California's research budget or redirecting.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: I mean do you have a figure in dollars?
MR. TYLER: I do not have that •••
CHAffiMAN MELLO: The University of California has a pretty healthy budget.
MR. TYLER: Unfortunately, I don't deal with that end of it. I'm down here at the local level
just trying to rattle some cages.
CHAmMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. COLLIN:

Senator, two years ago in Budget Subcommittee, we put in, I believe there's a

hundred thousand dollars at the request that the fertilizer industry for Water Resources to do a study
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on nitrates specifically. I can't recall the language that went with that

b~t

it was for the study of

nitrates.
MR. TYLER: That was with the fertilizer industry.
MR. COLLIN: That was at their request and it went through Water Resources.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Was that approved by the administration?
MR. COLLIN: Yes, it did make it through.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Well, I think that's what we have to do is to follow up, and believe me,
the University of California have no problem usually getting what they want because they have a
good way of presenting their needs to the administration. And this year in the restoration project, we
added another, I think 30, or $19 million to the University of California's system as well as more to
the state universities. But here again, through you and your organization, if you will let us know what
we can do-- that's why I appreciate Jim coming here today, and Senator Vuich, who has been at our
meetings in previous times, she chairs the subcommittee for the Senate Budget and she's very
sympathetic, as I said, to agriculture. And if we can come up with a program to augment the budget
for the study of nitrates-- there's several ways to do it.

We can do it statewide where there is

ground water problems, but we can also come up with a sort of a demonstration program in a few
selected counties. Are you aware of son:le counties in the valley that have the same problems or not?
MR. COLLIN:

Yeah, both Fresno County and Tulare County have similar concerns and are

having problems with the tracing of just where it is coming from.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Fresno, Tulare,. Santa Cruz, Monterey might be good demonstration

areas, not to leave out San Benito and part of Santa Clara. But, you see, I'm just pointing out the
ways in which we might be able to get some assistance but somebody's going to have to write up a
proposal saying this is something that we should be doing and point out what is happening now with
the negative effect on the high

nitr~te

in the ground water which I've been following here in

Monterey and Santa Cruz County. It's really building up.

And to reverse it, it's going to take, you

know, a major effort. I don't know how we-- well, I guess you reverse it by cutting back on the use
of some of the nitrates but how you neutralize. what's there already is something that requires a lot of
research, I think.
Okay, Ron, thank you very much for your comments. Now we have Mr. Chuck Overfelt, the
Board of Director of the California Tomato Association.
MR. CHUCK OVERFELT: Yeah, thank you for allowing me to appear before you. I'm, number
one, a farmer in San Benito County, and also, number one, a Director of the California Tomato
Growers Association that represents Santa Clara County and Monterey County and San Benito
County. We have a problem that really surfaced in 1986. Prior to that time-- we are a late-growing
tomato area. Prior to that time, we could get a handshake agreement with the canners if they would
accept a contract of which the Tomato Growers Association would set with the main counties in the
middle part of the state. In 1986, we shook hands with the canneries; and when ·it came to ship our
product, we were told that we would get $5 less, take it or leave it.
Coming out of that, and thanks a lot to your guidance, Senator Mello and others, we got a bill
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through the Senate, AB 2.642., which would give some sort of conciliation between the grower and
canner. This bill was vetoed by the Governor, very disappointingly to us. The same problem exists,
because I have to go to my banker in December to budget for the crop the following year and I have
to go in with some, give or take, 2.0 percent basis which to borrow this money on. So all I can get it
from is the cannery I sell to. If he's going to back out of that later on, then I have a problem.
Robert Schuler back here could probably get into a little more detail on it. If he could come
up -- if he could come up and say a few words. That's about all I have to say and I want to thank you
very much for letting me talk before you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Thank you. Mr. Schuler.
MR. ROBERT SCHULER:

Senator Mello, it's nice to see you in Salinas.

Jim, Rick, Kathy,

John, how are you all this morning?
I don't really have much more to add other than to thank you publicly, Senator Mello, for the
guidance and the assistance that you gave us as we worked on this bill through the Senate and through
the Assembly.

It is a problem that continues to exist.

The issue has not gone away and we are

actively looking at new and different ways to bring the issue back to you.

The discussions are

continuing. You'll see some sort of legislation we think introduced in December or January. We hope
to deal with this issue and perhaps at that time, once again, your guidance will be solicited and be
forthcoming as to how we might fashion this piece of legislation so that the Governor would look
more favorably upon it at this time. Unless there's any questions, that's all I've got to say.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Well, maybe Mister-- I do have a couple of questions.

Mr. Overfelt

might want to come back up. I might point out that Mr. Bill Grigg is here from the California League
of Food Processors, which, as you know, represented the other side of the situation. He may want to
come forward also, if he would like to testify.
The bill did get vetoed. I read the other day in the paper, and it seems to me what I'm going to
suggest is the problem, I think, is centralized more amongst tomatoes, tomato growing and canning,
than it is amongst everything else. Of course, the bill was broad and it included every commodity.
Mr. Ramsey just stepped out, but he supplies broccoli to food processors. I've never had a complaint,
really, from any producing group other than tomatoes.

And one thing you might want to consider

is -- the other day in the paper, it did say that even right now we're well into, and I guess almost over
with the tomato harvest.

You're still dealing with an open price for the canneries, as I understand

from the article last week. You've got contracts to deliver so many tons a day but you don't have the
price.

And I guess the canners, from the canners' point of view, they're going to go ahead and pack

this year's crop. Of course, they're faced with worldwide competition in other areas and then they'll
determine a price to pay the growers. And I think the Legislature would be happy to just see how
that works. If it does, you know, really affect our ability to produce a commodity. I'm just saying
that if you come back again, I think you're going to have better luck if you narrow the bill down to
those commodities that really have some problem. But I represent also, both in my four counties,
there's a lot of food processing here among frozen food packers and they were really opposed to the
bill because it affected a lot of the things that they were packing.

- 2.7-

And like I say, none of their

producers are affected, because they do have a set price and they sign contracts. It's based on a pack
out or a grade level. If you deliver a grade, you get so much.

B~t

I don't know if you've given any

thought to that. But from my own perspective, you have a better chance of trying to fix the problem,
if you do have a problem, than you do have if you try to broaden the scope so that more and more
people get affected who don't have a problem.
MR. SCHULER: Did you have a response?
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah. Well, first of all, is it true that you're operating without a price in
your contract as far as delivery of tomatoes?
MR. OVERFELT:
contract's late.

Well, it always operates when it looks like it's going to go against us, the

And when it looks like it's to the benefit of the processor or the cannery, the

contract is signed early.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: What is the rule? I mean what is the market, as far as canned tomatoes?
Is there a lot of inventory?

MR. OVERFELT: Very definitely not. With the devaluation of the dollar and the short crop in
the earth, there's no problem there. With probably some of the bad weather back East, there's no
problem there and you can see the differentiation between Tri-Valley, which is a
op, and some of the prices paid by the proprietary canneries.

grower-own'~

i
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And I do understand the s-:n .,.Jl ·!•-

cannery has to sometimes sell to a larger label cannery and he has slowed down there.
rm not going to save the cannery that's bound and determined to go broke and I'm not going to
save the farmer that's bound and determined to go broke, but there's a large middle area there that,
as we deal with the larger multi-national cannery and not an owner-- we used to deal with an owner
in the old days. Now we're dealing with a litigator hired by a board of a conglomerate. It's hard to -they're just not, they don't listen any more. So we have the Growers Association to try to talk for us
now. As a small farmer, I can't do it any more.
MR. SCHULER:
legislation, I think

t~at's

Senator, with all respect to your suggestion concerning limiting this
an interesting suggestion and one we'll obviously have to take a look at. But

I should also point out that there are other groups that have these same concerns and have faced
these problems in the near past.

Groups like the Olive Growers Council are intimately concerned

about this and are facing these kinds of problems.
In addition, even though you weren't able to be present, there was a similar hearing to this one
in Visalia about a year ago where there was a very impassionate and emotional presentation made by
people from the Cling Peach and Freestone Peach Association who indicated that these problems are
facing them on an ongoing and a routine basis. In addition, the pear growers and the California Farm
Bureau Federation as a whole have supported this legislation.

So even though we'll certainly take

your suggestion into consideration, this is a broader problem than just tomatoes.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah. But on the other hand, there's been

za canners and food processors

that are closed up in California in the last three or four years and 1 mean from their point of view, I
kuow

Crt!t~ll

Giant, OP.l Monte, a lot of tht! big cannerR, they'vt! rl!lu<:tttl'd in

lncxptmtitvc ldbor culd

5o

forth. Let

m~

ask Jim to comment on
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th.-~.t.

Mf~xit:o.

Tlwy hav" r•!dl

MR. COLLIN:

Yeah, you made reference to the Assembly Ag Committee that was held in

Senator Vuich's back yard, if you will, Tulare County, Visalia, where a lot of the other, all these
people, as well as the peach canning people were there. A question in regards to the industry, the
growers and the canners, the loss of such a large number of our canners in the state and their
relocation, what's has happened with the number of growers? Have we lost as many growers due to
the loss of the canners or do we have the same number of growers still in the state?
MR. SCHULER: Jim, I don't have that information, unless Chuck does. That's something we'd
have to get for you.
MR. COLLIN: Do you have an idea? Has it decreased? I haven't seen the acreage. It usually
goes up and down.
MR. OVERFELT: I think it's •••
MR. COLLIN: But I haven't seen the acreage drop dramatically.
MR. OVERFELT: Probably same acreage, less growers.
MR. SCHULER: The only comment I would have about the loss of the Z8 canners, I mean we
obviously, we feel that just as directly as the canners do. I mean that's a loss of a source for our
product. But I think you should recall that the kind of legislation that we have been talking about,
that we have been proposing, is non-binding legislation which would enforce either party to accept
either prices or terms and conditions of any contract and therefore shouldn't force anybody out of
business.

If they can't live with the prices, if we can't live with the prices, then under our

suggestions, neither side would be bound by them and then could go their own ways and find their own
sources of products.
MR. COLLIN:

Have you had an opportunity to discuss the veto and start those negotiations

with the administration to see what is possible down the road?
MR. SCHULER: We will be having those discussions in the very near future, yes.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: All right. Thank you very much.
MR. SCHULER: Thank you, Senator.
CHAmMAN MELLO: Well, I see there's another side of this issue here. I don't know whether
Mr. Grigg wants to come up and talk about their game plan. Okay. You decided not to.
Well, just to shed some light, the bill was introduced this year. There was another bill before
that -- both of them had binding arbitration clauses in them.

I think that was rejected by the

Legislature -- you have different committees that feel-- I mean even myself. I feel this is private
enterprise; we should not enforce a concept of binding arbitration. I think that the Legislature was
more sympathetic to fact finding and negotiation and trying to get a resolution of the issue set up
where the Director of Agriculture got involved. That's the way the bill finally was amended and the
government chose not to sign it.

But I think what I would suggest is right here with the League,

which is your major opposition, sit down and try to get things worked out. If both sides could agree to
it and sit down with the administration and see what they're going to be receptive to and then come
back to the Legislature; I think in doing that, you have a better chance than if you just come up
without settling what the conflicts were with last year's legislation.
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Ollay. Thank yw on that. Now we 1ll m6ve w to Tim DtiseoU ftom fJriseoU 9tu.wbertie!8.
MR. TIM Dltisct>Ll.t Goad morning, Senatot.

CHAiRMAN MILLQt Talk about pestleities and :Bug Vath
MR. J.tltiSGQ'LLa Possibilities. :Pr1neipallyt 1 want to adcii'E!ss the eoncetns that farmera have
aewt pestieides, and intefestingiy enough; I was getting ti!ady this morning Md Iiiy ctaughtet walked
in and ~he said, ''Daddy; are you going to anbthl!r meeting1il Atid I said; 11 Yeah." Atul abe aaidt 11 Aren1t
feu sie~ (){ meetings yet?• it seems iilie i was spefidiiig a lot of time ciaing them. But i £utplained to
lier Uiat whMut peapie meeting, it's bilpol!iaible te investigate nE!w pe!isibilities and to Gteatf:! and
invent new aetiefi. And it seems like mueh of the aeHttn that we take has bfH!n tht1 aGtii:lns of
restfietians and fiat relliiy haVing toe e9fiversatiw for pofi&ibiHUes.
!;eme at the eeneerns tiiat l'lifuiE!rs ha•e• and we da have ebnterna about them• lili'nh!ts l::l~fi't
want ta use pesUeities. it we didn't have to use peslieities; we'ti b~ the happiest pee:ple hi the woril::l.
it ea!its a let ef mcmey, as hu iee~ painted but many times 'befote. For me pei'a9iially, it eost fiie
a6~t $1 1100 per aei'l! jillit in my eoiit of ehemieaia il.iid pestieitiea. That's not iH.eludltilft appli12ati~n at
iaBar ar adtiHtenai iiiaeiiinei'y and ettuipment that i need. ta iippiy these things, th~ time and erhugy- to
deal ~ita Hie Ag Gammissil:lnel'1s otfiee. Tlif! Ha'biittiea that we taee iifs great i11 he.nciHttg the
eiiemieais, in maitin§ sure tliat Wl!;re gperating at safe leveia, the protl:!etiofi t}f my people ht Ute
tie1d1 ai§a 1 alii e9fieefii8 aitmt ilie eensumets that take a\ii' ptotiuet.
'fhe vast; va§t area tJt restfietiaiili utl laws tliat we've Dl:!efi taeetl with to u.•y Mil ti~al with
Pelative f(j safety, tilefe seeiDs Bite tliefe1s just bel:!fi tnurl! lllitl liiure rl!sttietiotis that have beeft
plaeed efi \Is~ it's made u§ ilavf! mere meeHiigli with aurselveii and. tJtiler grau.ps to tty eci dis~Wis new
slfate~i@s in tllis jaiDe; iUil to go araWili thtJse festrietltJiiB but to w9i'k whh theift~ ilso, ft@W
eanvefsatiatis ft;jr pt;js!iibilitit:!s a'baut nt!W teelmslugii!s. Wt!'vre had eonversati6M itt nh!!l:!tings with the
etfaw'Derry Ativisaff :Daud1 wHli t;A:PeA, vatibWi grawi!ra1 usotiatioiiB, We$tel'i1 Ori:lwer&, Otow~~
eiiippefs~ P'arm Dw:eau. bath ah lt1eal and state leve11i, anil indeed iii private eompa.nies. At tltisel:lil
§traw'&effY A§seeiates, we've beeR en titre edge af m~st af the teehftalt}gy attil the ei:lnel:!~ns telaHve ttl
tile use af pesHeide§ fof a number t:Jf years. As yau lmow, §uawbel'rires is ei:lftsiileteil one i:lf the
laraest usefs ef eheffiicals pett eftip iii agt'ieulture and t1lat1s a great eoneern f@l' \lilt not just tfafD the
statidp~ifit ef whatis fieeessary ta t:JfaW aUt ef~p beeause it's a pereilnial iliH1 it1s ifi \lie gl'owd. ioitget
~g we have a let &iafe pest prailems but thE! attitude Uutt peaph~ have about that. Afid we'te
farmers ant! weire sttaWlJ@i'ry ftlfHH:!rs iut we're also the people that buy the pl'oduets ~mtt havre the
same eEineefrisa
filfee y@srs aset we iHvestigated a new p(!Jssibility fel.' tii ealil:!d Bug Vae El.iid sam~ l)f t~u may
t;@ iaHHii&f witJi itt I!Jaffte at ·yi:lu tftay HtJta But it was patt of Yihat1s beeame an iH.tegfatetl pest
lfhifiageni~nt firadraffi, iitelutlift~J biaiogieal t@~hitalal!tf, to eliminatE! our pest problem~
lit
straw Defries, thefe ate prinei~aliy three pests that we deai wi tilt 'there ai'e spider tDi te, thete1s
l}tguli, illid tiit!r~'s thfip. Anti thi:ise are the Uiiiigs that we tt1a.lly use the ehemieais ta sptay for~
Buii Vae is basiealiy a &ug vaeU.\tiD eleanert thus the nanu!, Afttl it's one teal that we \lae te eliminate
1-)fytts anti mairttain the lygus at aeeeptable level!l lfi dur strawbefry crttp. We tradiUotUtHy slltay

various chemicals for lygus and also the thrip and spider mite.
It presented an interesting problem for us to solve but we felt that if we could eliminate lygus

by the use of this vacuum, that it would allow naturally occurring natural enemies, or predator
insects, to build in populations that would basically take over the control of the other pests that we
have in the field.

There are insects of various names that work in this process but the naturally

occurring insects took over the control of the thrip.
Now when I was spraying last year, my thrip counts were in the 30s and 40s, which is very
unacceptable, very high levels. This year, in the process of using Bug Vac, allowing those natural
occurring natural enemies to show up, my counts on tbrip -- the highest count was eight and the
average was about four.
The spider mite was another problem that was difficult, but what we ended up doing was
investigating the possibilities of biological-controlled air. We imported persimilis, which is a special
insect that is specific as opposed to general; it's a spider mite alone. And we put those out in kind of
a salt shaker method out in the field and it effectively eliminated our spider mite.
The long and the short of this is that when I saw the research after two years, it was impressive
enough to me to basically do what rve always done, which is plunge. And I took apart my spray rig
and used the tractor to build the bug vacuum. Ed Show and Mike McCluney

(inaudible)

Driscoll

Strawberries Associates' research department, and Mike McCluney is an agricultural fabricator and
also an inventor in his own right. We designed a Bug Vac to work on my ranch, put it into use this
year. And this year, I'm very proud to say I did not use any insecticides on my ranch at all. I still
spray fungicides to prevent fruit rot and mildew but no insecticides or pesticides on my ranch.
The good part of that, and the next question that obviously comes up, is, well, what happened to
the berries? And they were great. This is one of the best production years rve bad in ten years and
the control of the insects through biological tactics, including Bug Vac, were controlled. I eliminated
70 percent of the cost of chemicals that I normally would use. The statistical last count that I had
was as of September 1 of this year. My last year, I had spent over $31,000 on chemicals. This year,
on the same date, I bad spent $8,000, a substantial savings to me.
The other part of it is that my workers are safe. I can use this machine two rows away-- it's a
little noisy-- but they're completely safe.

Much of the liabilities have been taken out of my

concerns about growing, not just for me and consumers and my workers but my neighbors, the people
that are right next door, people that live in the neighborhoods and border some of the fields. There's
one woman that was very concerned about what was being sprayed on the crops.

She was very

pleased to find out that all we were using was fungicides which in general are very, very safe.
The discovery of Bug Vac was very important, and Driscoll Strawberries recognized the
importance of this.

We are a private company and there are many things in our company that are

proprietary concerns that we use to maintain our edge in the marketplace, et cetera. Bug Vac was so
important and had, in our opinion, such a tremendous impact, or could have, on the strawberry
industry that in March of this year, we went to the California Strawberry Advisory Board and we
offered Bug Vac as a possibility to the strawberry industry. And we got a whole lot of horse laughs
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and a lot of humorous comments about it, but a couple of growers outside of this organization took it
seriously and investigated that possibility and put it in their field:; and tried it out and it worked.
Since then, the use of the Bug Vac is starting to show up all over the place.
I was driving down here -- I live in Aptos-- and drove down here to Salinas from my ranches
and noticed three or four of them, brand new, out on the field. They looked like maybe, sort of like,
something from outer space. There have been various pictures of it in news publications and in the
Western Grower and Shipper Magazine, it was on the cover.

And actually, the one that was on the

cover is the one that I designed.
My offer here is to really shift the conception of farmers, that we are concerned, that we're not
out there, you know, spraying because we enjoy over-endangering people and we don't have concerns.
And also, the conception of how agriculture and citizens and Legislature can traditionally interact.
You know, it seems like there's a fight there.
doing.

Somebody's not doing what they're supposed to be

And I suggest that we can work together, that together we can have a meeting that creates

new possibilities.
My request is to develop a task force to investigate new possibilities and alternatives, not to
restrict them. Restrictions are not alternatives and can stifle creativity. I ask that you direct the
legislation towards the creation, towards creation and inventions, offer incentives and support
research. Everything is possible. It waits only to be discovered as !l possibility through conversations
with human beings and made real through the action that come out of those things. So what do you
say, Senator? Let's invent a new meaning. Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Thank you, Tim.

Let me first congratulate you and your firm for the

tremendous amount of research you've done in coming out with this Bug Vac machine, for one thing,
and also improving the quality of strawberries by the many varieties that you have over the years
been able to produce.

And one question about Bug Vac -- I'm happy to

s~e

it used more

extensively-- are there other commodities that it might be used on that would be as successfUl as
well other than strawberries?
MR. DRISCOLL:

Right now, we've been approached, or I've been approached, by lettuce

· growers to make use of Bug Vac for control of whitefly down in Indio or in the desert areas. It seems
to be a particularly difficult problem down there.

Michael McCluney has gone down there with

various growers to investigate the possibilities of the use of that and it looks like it may be successful
. to· control whitefly by that method in that area.
I would suggest that the investigation and the possibilities for that are going to be pretty
widespread. I wouldn't see why it couldn't be adapted to otheJ," crops, certainly, as part of the tools
that we can use, and some of the jnventions that are possible for that. It works for us and I don't see
why it can't work for others.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Let me ask you about incentives. Now I just take it that any money you
expend into developing such a machine as Bug Vac is, you know, you're entitled to R and D and can
write that off as a research-and-development expense. What in particular would you need in the way
of incentives ovP.r and above that?
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MR. DRISCOLL:

Well, when I say "incentivestt , I don't necessarily equate it monetarily.

Incentives -- the incentive that I perceive might be best coming from

the government, is

something -- and I don't know specifically what it might be -- but a new posture that would create an
atmosphere of motivation for people to want to design equipment like that, to want to create new
inventions that are going to alleviate the problems that we have ecologically, environmentally. We've
addressed one area here of pesticides, but I suggest that the area is much broader than that.
The creation of a task force is that kind of an incentive. It says to me that the government is
concerned but not just concerned about restricting what may be dangerous but opening the
possibilities of what's unknown.

I can't remember -- I believe it was John Kennedy who said that

people see what is and say why but I see what isn't and say why not. That to me is an incentive for
creation, a public statement like that.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: I think your idea for the task force certainly has a lot of merit and I'd be
happy to explore that and work with my colleagues to try to see how we can bring that about. One
thing that would seem innovative from-- at least I've seen pictures of your machine. Would it be
possible to --I know it's transportable -- bring it up to Sacramento for a display there at the capitol
somewhere on the grounds and also have perhaps a visual or slide presentation there to show how this
works so Members of the Legislature and Food and Ag and everybody can look at this and from that
hopefully to motivate us into, you know, wanting to move forward on the task force and also
incentives.
Let me ask Jim also. I know that Senator Vuich is on this committee for trying to help with
more exports of California products.

We put in the budget an amount of money, I think, to help

explore and expand our market overseas. And you might want to comment on that.
MR. COLLIN:

Yeah, last year, we put in, I believe there's $117,000 to the Department of

Food and Ag to have a California specific export trade lead system. That's on line. It's set up; it's
going through a test process in November and December and is expected in January that anyone in
this state can sign up with either just a phone modem or any PC or just with the electronic mail or
letters can be on this system and can get any trade lead either nationally, internationally.
One of the other prospects that could come out of that is looking at expanding the domestic
market, which we as California have not looked at.

We've been looking pretty heavily at the

Pacific Rim where we have an extensive domestic market that is yet to be tapped. So that is in the
works and it is being coordinated out of Fresno State and that's where they have all the hardware in
place so at no additional expense to the state the hardware will be duplicated or be used more
extensively.
If I may, Senator.

CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yes, sir.
MR. COLLIN: I had a question. You mentioned that you brought in some beneficial bugs, if you
will, that were specific to the spider mite.
MR. DRISCOLL: Yes, sir.
MR. COLLIN: Where did you bring them from and did you have any problems with CDFA or any
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other agencies in getting permits to bring in an exotic bug?
MR. DRISCOLL: No, we brought them from Holland and there are also places in England that
in sectors that produce this particular mite. And there are places here in California that are also in
the process of producing that mite. There are basically two varieties -- persimilis and occidentalis.
It's a scientific name and the permits and the galley were coordinated through another organization
that acted as the distributor. Our organization's currently opening conversations with an organization
in England to set up a similar type of circumstance.

And also, my cousin and I are coordinating to

have a consultant flown over from England so that we are pursuing the possibility of producing
persimilis on our own ranches so that we have basically an independent supply.
MR. COLLIN: Also, I was curious. I remember stories

ot

my mom growing up in the hills and

getting all the ladybugs and bringing them down.
MR. DRISCOLL: Yeah. Ladybugs are specific to aphid and they're very good for aphid control.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Tim, again, on this task force, your envision of the task force would be to
look for new alternatives through the use of chemicals and insecticides and pesticides. It would be, I
guess, looking for a mechanical alternative as well as other natural or •••
MR. DRISCOLL:

Yeah, biological alternatives, mechanical techniques.

As I said before,

everything is possible and I wouldn't really limit it to •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

All right.

What I'd like to have you do, if you would, is to send me a

letter recommending such a task force and pointing out what you envision this task force to do and
then I will take that -- I'll certainly talk to Senator Vuich and Assemblyman Seastrand about that,
and other legislators.

We probably would have to introduce some legislation placing it under

Food and Agriculture as 'we did with other, similar legislation-- try to start out, I mean with some
funding that would help cover the costs of the task force and then assign, you know, duties to them.
I'm sure-- you know, I'm thinking of my colleagues in the urban areas who are introducing bills that
would just about outlaw the use of pesticides and insecticides. Something like this coming about, I'm
sure they would jump at it, you know, and say, "My

goo~ess, her~

we can reduce pesticides by some

alternative means," that actually yo!l have, with the track record you have, right now, by the end of
this year, would be impressive.

And the question is:

Do y'ou think it's possible to bring this to

Sacramento? Is it too difficult?
MR. DRISCOLL:

Yeah, I believe it is. I have-- actually, I've thought about bringing a slide

presentation that I have prepared for this today but I didn't know it it was appropriate or not. But
there is a presentation and I'm sure -- well, I would be more than willing to cooperate with this.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay. We'll try to coordinate that maybe sometime in the-- let's see.
Your machine, you probably get started when, in April or May, using it quite heavily?
MR. DRISCOLL: Well, generally, we start off the season as needed. What that does basically is
allows the natural growing, natural enemies, civilian populations.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. DRISCOLL: So I would say we could probably expect sometime around mid-April.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay. John, any comments on this? I know you're ..•
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MR. JOHN OLOW: I just want to make sure I have this -- sorry. I just want to make sure that I
have this, you call it Bug-o-Vac?
MR. DRISCOLL: It's called Bug Vac. That's a trademark name.
MR. OLOW: Bud Vac.
MR. DRISCOLL: It's B-u-g V-a-c.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: V-a-c.
MR. OLOW: Sucks them up; is that it?
MR. DRISCOLL: Basically yeah, that's it.
MR. OLOW: I just wanted to make sure I had it right.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

You might send Mr. Seastrand -- and John, I know you have some

pictures and brochure, whatever you have, just send them.
MR. OLOW: Eric would appreciate it. I'll give you my card.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: How many of these are being used now?
MR. DRISCOLL: Well, I don't --I don't know how many now. I know that last year, well, mine
was the first 100 percent commercially used last year. There were others that started in June and
some growers within our organization had probably one part of the acres just as an experiment.
But •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Do you have a patent on this or not?
MR. DRISCOLL: No, it was unpatentable. A man by the name of Dietrich invented something
called De Vac about ten years ago, which was the process of removing insects by use of a vacuum.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. DRISCOLL: So basically, it made our discoveries unpatentable but not unuseful.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. DRISCOLL: So the-- I'm sorry. I forgot what the question was. Basically, we're going
to •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Well, the number of machines that we're out •••
MR. DRISCOLL: Oh, I'm sorry; I'm sorry. The number has grown, three fabricators in this local
area that have orders to build Bug Vacs and are backed up all the way to March of next year. So
there will be, I know I've seen five new Bug Vacs developed during the last six months and there
probably will be a number of other things that will created by ••
CHAIRMAN MELLO: What do these machines cost, I mean roughly?
MR. DRISCOLL: What it cost me was about $19,000, which does not include the tractor.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
MR. DRISCOLL: And basically, it paid for itself in less than one year.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: You're talking about $30,000?
MR. DRISCOLL: I would say so, yes, you know, as far as a new tractor. The impossibility is to
create "the" machine rather than a tractor but you couldn't mount it. Basically it's the same theory
as the motor company, a motorized bug vacuum cleaner.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Tim, I'm really impressed with this and I was when I first saw this. I said
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well, it's about time that we, you know, the Americans show our ability to invent things and this is
certainly one that was very much needed and desired and I think will be very beneficial. And again,
our thanks to you for your endeavor in this regard.
MR. DRISCOLL: It's my pleasure. Thank you, Senator, and I'll be in touch.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Thank you very much. Next we have Mr. Paul Buxman, California Clean
Growers Association, and this will be an interesting topic. I read your background material and -MR. PAUL BUXMAN: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: -- I want to welcome you.
MR. BUXMAN: As far as something that the task force can do right away is we could adapt one
of those machines for table grapes. We have lots of vine hoppers that we have trouble getting rid of
and they're an introduced pest and very resistent to many pesticides. So if that gets formed, we can
sure use one.
Okay.

I'm going to address a lot of issues because I have many farmers in our organization

called California Clean Growers Association. Each one has .a slightly different problem that they're
facing, but we're here mainly to address economic problems.

And there's a lot of problems that

translate themselves into economics so I'm just going to read my statement and I've tried to include
all the ideas that my other partners have spoken to me about.
My name is Paul Buxman.

I farm 40 acres of plums, nectarines, grapes, and kiwi near

Kingsburg, California. I'm a very happy and thankful man. The farm is doing well; my equipment is
all paid for and my house is paid for.

My trees and vines look healthy.

I have to add it's a very

humble dwelling, however, as iny wife would you tell you if she was here.
My family and I have a wonderful life. This was once my father's farm and I expect that my
children one day hopefully will also · ~arm this land.

Dad still farms the 20 acres next to us and we

share equipment. A quarter mile dirt road fronting my orchards and running through Dad's vineyards
and past his gardens conne~ts our two homes. We represent, I think, the family farm that so many
people want to preserve but just aren't sure how.

It's true, many small farms have not been so

successful in past years. Children seem to show less and less interest in going into farming. The only
real profits to be made anymore, it seems, are in the selling off of the land.
The average California farm today is 432 acres.

That 432 acres probably used to represent

many small family farms that, for one reason or another, sold out. It still takes as many families to
operate these larger farms, but many of them no longer live on that farm.
much smaller, owners did most of the actual physical work themselves.

When farm sizes were

When help was needed, the

owners worked alongside the hired hands. There was a relationship of mutual respect. Today, most
labor is handled by labor contractors who can keep the farm

wor~ers

at a distance from the owner.

It's so much easier to tell a contractor to keep the workers going, no matter what the temperature,
than to tell the workers themselves. That way, the owner doesn't really have to know how exhausted
the workers actually are. I've seen that happen, by the way.
A natural outcome of fewer and fewer people owning more and more of the land has been a
ter:r;ible distancing.

The owner sees less and less farm laborers.
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Out of sight and out of mind has

helped to ease the conscience. When women working in the fields suffered twice the number of still
births and children born with defects than the national average, the landowner does not need to worry
because the problem is beyond his view. These larger farms have so much produce to sell, they need
huge middlemen to handle the bulk. These middlemen need further middle men to divide the mass.
By the time the fruit gets to the consumer, all traces of natural origin seems to have been erased.
The owner doesn't have to see the disappointed look of another little widow biting into yet another
tasteless peach, plum, or grape.

You can tell from what area I come from.

Those are our

commodities. I also speak, of course, for many small family farmers.
The average piece of fruit today has traveled 1,300 miles before finally arriving at the produce
counter. There just isn't much room for perishable fruit any more. Toughened varieties, picked green
and coated with fungicide are about the only fruits that can stand the trip. The public has tolerated
the lessening of flavor and sweetness; they have simply added a little sugar. They have also tolerated
the lessening of nutrition. They've added some vitamin pills to their diets. But as the full truth about
the poisoning of land, air, and water becomes increasingly apparent, let alone the poisoning of the
fruit, I think their tolerance will finally end.
The natural fertility of California's topsoils is diminishing.

Farmers no longer properly feed

soils with complete diets as was commonly done. By the way, there is no evil plot in this. Farmers
don't set out to do these things,

~d

I'll explain after lunch, if you're interested, really how I think this

came about. It wasn't, I don't think, the farmers' fault necessarily.
Nobody pays a farmer to build soil.
unnatural increases in production.

We're all to blame for that.

With petro-chemical fertilizers and pesticides have come

With increased production have come reduced profits from

oversupply. In order to make payments, the farmer has begged the government for either financial
subsidies or science which can further increase yields. They've gotten both in the past. Governmentfunded agricultural science has yielded many new varieties which can boast increased yields of tough,
red fruit. Science has figured out ways to close-plant trees. I just was looking at this recently. I see
it all happening all around me. They close-plant them in order to further increase production and get
it producing in a hurry. But never mind that the soils are further stressed to produce unnaturally high
yields.

You know, the amount you take out of the soil, you've got to put the same amount back in.

You get quick yields but you've just got to put in quick more inputs.
So as not to lose one precious fruit, all sorts of pesticides have been developed to protect the
overproduced crop. But as more and more pesticides are found unsafe, science has jumped to other
more exotic ways to protect fruit that is already in oversupply. The genes of fruit trees are being
altered or, in some cases, spliced, so that a tree· of the future will be able to produce its own
"natural" toxins to ward off pests. Now that should eliminate the spraying of pesticides, right, if your
plants can produce their own pesticide? The only problem is the fruit itself becomes mildly toxic.
Poisonous fruit trees, overproducing rather flavorless, non-nutritious fruit, grow in ways which
deplete soils, and perhaps pollute the environment. All the public really wants is this: Good tasting,
nutritious, wholesome fruit, and born to be grown in a non-polluting way.
methods just shouldn't be so hard to achieve.
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Those qualities and

I have asked to speak today because I believe I have some good news. And when I heard Tim, I
was thrilled that he spoke ahead of me. I haven't heard of anyone using this but I heard about it and
so now you can hear two good news in a row.
I know so many farmers that are in economic straits for so many different reasons.

And I

thought to myself, how can these senators, who possibly don't farm themselves, be expected to fully
consider such a complex issue and come up with ways to keep these farmers afloat?
To solve the money, the farm money problems, you would first have to solve the energy crisis,
the water crisis, the immigration crisis, the ozone crisis, the taxies crisis, and now, the "greenhouse
effect" is on its way which environmental scientists say will greatly magnify each individual crisis.
Things look so bleak sometimes, we farmers begin to react in unexpected ways to additional bad
news.

Last week, I listened to a report on the global warming trend resulting from the greenhouse

effect.

The scientist said agriculture will be forced to move much further north. They expect that

California agriculture is going to be forced to go up there in apple country is what I understand. That
same afternoon, a book came in the mail accompanied by a -letter from the author urging me to read
its contents immediately and spread the word.

The title of the book was The Survivial of

Civilization. Within the first few pages, the author warns of an imminent ice age due to hit North
America around 1990. My first reaction was, "Oh, good!

That will give us a little relief from the

greenhouse effect. n
Sometimes I wonder which is

worse~

the greenhouse effect or perhaps the White House effect.

Governmental farm policies have always meant well, but increasingly, we are finding that every time
the government tries to bail out .agriculture, it seems to backfire. Maybe economic problems aren't
what we need to be trying to solve at this point. Perhaps there are more pressing problems that need
to be dealt with first.

At this point, the way I see it, worrying about farm economic problems is

about as useful as worrying about a hole in a boat that is about to go over the edge of a waterfall.
Maybe the smartest thing to do is get out of the boat and swim to shore while we've got the chance.
With this thought in mind, about a dozen farmers and myself formed a group called the
California Clean Growers Association with the expressed purpose of finding a new way to farm, less
dependent on the old, leaky security boat that science and government built. The way we saw it, the
boat that was offered didn't really give us much of a pleasure cruise anyway. We were promised the
Love Boat from science but ended up on an oil barge.

It should make an interesting splash at the

bottom of the falls. Geologists predict that the United States will have pumped its last drop of U.S.
oil by around the year 2.02.0 -- that's optimistically speaking.

An agriculture based on petro-

chemicals is not where we can be. On my farm checks in the upper left-hand corner, there's a small
picture of a farmer working in his field. Underneath him are these words:

"Our soil, our strength."

My wife did that. I thought that was nice. Modern agriculture hal> that same motto and it's had it for
years.

But somebody, perhaps some chemical salesman, has erased the letter "s" from the word

"soil". I don't think too many farmers really even noticed•
. In lP.ss than a year since our core group was formf'd, 60 individual fClrmers

reprmu~nting

.llHlllt

10,000 acres have joined our movement, a movement to bring sensibility, economic stability, and even
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a little joy back into farming.
Two weeks ago, Dr. Steven Balling, Manager of the Entomology and Pesticide Control for
Del Monte Foods, came to my farm with three of his field advisors.

And after listening to some of

the California Clean farming methods and seeing the healthy trees, the tasty fruit, all grown in a
manner which leave the soil, the air, and the water cleaner for their having been farmed, he said, "I
think and I believe we can do this." This man, by the way, picked a spider off my tree. I didn't know
if it was, you know, going to bite him or not. But he assumed that on these natural farms, everything
is safe.

And it crawled around on his hand and I thought, "Please, don't bite this man," you know.

And it didn't and he said, "This is fascinating." He puts it back down. I wouldn't tell you to do that.
But he was quite enthralled and he also -- he's in charge of not the actual farming practices but he
suggests to all the growers for Del Monte Foods how they would like their foods to be grown.
Rooter Brothers-- I think, Tim, you probably know of them.

They're in Oxnard. They have

strawberries too.
MR. DRISCOLL: No, Reiter Brothers.
MR. BUXMAN: Reiter Brothers.
MR. DRISCOLL: We're cousins.
MR. BUXMAN: Oh, great. Okay. He told you about their invention so I don't need to tell you.
But they were raising some of their own predators in hothouses so they didn't have to buy them. And
he called because he read the article and said, "Hey, here's an idea and if you've got any strawberry
growers, tell them about this."

I think it's wonderful when there is a spirit of cooperation among

farmers because we're all competitors, and it's wonderful to see farmers not only thinking about
competition.
Such ideas are much more than just money savers or simply nice things to do for the
environment's sake; they are survival techniques. The three leading miticides used in California over
the past ten years are in the process of being pulled from the market due to their toxicity. One has
been pulled, Quicktram, you might know. All three have been implicated as possible mutagens which
can cause stillbirths and birth defects.

Ralph Lightstone, attorney and pesticide expert, speaking

before the State Department of Food and Agriculture about the main ingredient used in the two most
popular miticides, said, "This is another one of those chemicals that was put on the market before the
manufacturer or the state knew how hazardous it would be to workers. We have to stop these trialand-error experimentations. n
Chemical companies are becoming less and less interested, of course, in developing new
chemicals if they're going to be pulled off the market right away. So farmers really can't look for
new pesticides to come out to take their place of the old ones. This "forced cleaning" of agricultural
practices terrifies farmers who have never left the security ship or the petro-chemical barge.

But

for those of us who are beginning to jump ship or have already jumped, we see from shore, which is a
little higher, those securities were false and shortsighted indeed.

Giving them up was not only

refreshing; we also probably saved our necks. The soil is where we should have stayed and focused
our attention in the first place.
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Last month, Ricardo Amon of the California Energy Commission called to ask if our group could
come up with ideas to demonstrate energy conservation. You know, all of these ideas are to save
money, save energy, and keep the place clean, and we're all trying to do those things and that's why I
was so impressed with Tim's ideas. And I'm finding more and more people calling, saying, "Hey, we
got an idea." And I write them down. I've got a stack about three inches deep of letters. I need to
give them to somebody. Maybe I should give them to this new task force, huh, when you get it put
together?
I thought uf the many ways that all of these farmers that have joined the group have been
cutting energy use in the past five years. Our farm operations actually really are farm projects. We
don't have any sophisticated monitoring or recording systems to see all the particulars, but our fuel
bills have certainly dropped. We only disc once or twice a year now and only to incorporate cover
crops. With the grasses and flowering clovers in our fields, predators have moved in by the hundreds
of thousands. At night, it shimmers out there. It looks -- it can be fun.

Some of my friends are

coming in from town and some of the bugs land on you. Predators, by the way, are meat eaters; pests
are plant eaters. Did you know those two differences? And did you know, you're a piece of meat?
(Laughter) So that's a problem on a natural farm. You get eaten a little bit too.
With predators working for us, we become more conscious of what we spray, if anything, on our
farms. My main pesticides last year, for example, were soap and sulfur. Soap was used against softbodied pests, while sulfer was used to protect against brown rot, blossom blight, and powdery mildew.
We have begun irrigating alternate rows. Dad told me many years ago, "Son," he said, "watch your
weeds. Don't water until they wilt." Well, naturally, when I was llSing herbicides, we hardly had any
weeds and we needed these special irometers that would go down; they're very expensive-hydrometers, I think they're called. And now, on most of our farms, with the weeds coming back,
naturally, we don't need those things. And one of my friends that came with me today sold his just
the other day. We have a lot of hydrometers now; and with all those indicators, we know just when to
irrigate.
Our farm environments are transforming.

They are once again becoming safe and beautiful

places to work and live. I no longer own a spray mask

~d

haven't worn one in five years. I don't miss

it a bit. I can still remember six years ago when my kids ran for the house in terror as I yelled at
them from the tractor that I was spraying poison.

They probably didn't even know it was me.

I

looked like a wild Darth Vadar waving my arms. But today, posting "Do Not Enter: Poison" signs is
no longer necessary on my ranch.
We have found that in many cases a proper farm environment, coupled with growing certain
plants, can be just aa effective in controlling pests as spraying them. Cahaba White Vetch, California
Poppies, and probably many other plants that we can

gro~,

can kill harmful, root munching

netnatodoes just as effectively as Nemacure or Nemagone. These nematicides have to put on year
uflt!r yt!ur so that's a big coat, and they pollute ground water. That's an additional cost. We've got to
clean it out of the water. Can you believe it? California poppies can do that. It's amazing.
D.B.C.P., you might know what that is. That's a nematicide to kill nematodes. Ten years after
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its banning, it's still in my ground water and it just so happens to be ten times the allowable so I have
a $5,000 filtration system on my house.

Those are added costs, you know, that had I been using

D.B.C.P., it wasn't there when I came into farming. But I'm sure feeling the effects of it. The guys
that made money off those grapes, when they used that -- you know, they owe me $5,000 -- I'll never
get it back -- and a lot of other things.
I'm going to tell you a little quick story about California Poppies. Maybe you want to go eat.
Do you want to go eat? You want to hear this? This will take another ten minutes. I'm sorry. You
guys are starved but I only have two more pages.
California Poppies have never been known to pollute ground water.

They not only kill

nematodes; they attract beneficial insects; they feed honeybees; they provide ground cover; they
produce organic matter; and just happen to delight my children. One application is forever. A pound
of poppy seeds sells for $14.
themselves.

It takes two pounds to the acre, and that's forever.

Nature's remedies almost always come with unexpected bonuses.

They reseed

Chemical remedies

often are accompanied by unexpected negatives.
By changing our farm environments to more closely resembling nature, we have taken steps to
ease all the major crises at the same time.

We use less energy -- that saves money; we use less

water -- that saves money. We need less heavy equipment; and the equipment that we do use, which
is lighter -- we don't disc as deep -- it lasts a whole lot longer. Instead of polluting water, air, and
soil, our practices can actually improve their quality. You don't have to worry about the water that's
coming underneath my ranch.

You know why?

'Cause it'll never pick up any poison.

So you're

downstream from us, right? So I feel like I'm doing something good, and a lot of other farmers too.
People tell me that they want to save the family farm.

I've heard this before.

You know,

people have an idea of what a family farm is. Actually, some family farms are huge, you know. But
in our area, they happen to be small. And please forgive me. My perspective is from Dinuba and, you
know, a bunch of little farmers-- Japanese and German and Italian, and did I miss a few? We're all
pretty little, actually. 40 acres is a pretty good size in my area.
People that want to save this family farm, I think we all know something -- subsidies won't save
them. Poison won't save the family farm; tough, red fruit won't save the family farm.

All of those

things are trying essentially to shore up farm economics by helping the farmers to produce more
fruit. By producing more of what the public is increasingly not wanting, that just isn't going to help,
especially when we louse up the environment in the process. The public feels like they are playing
trick or treat every time they buy a piece of fruit these days; and half the time, they get a trick. It
looks like fruit; it feels like fruit; but it sure doesn't taste like fruit.

Now I'm thinking more of

peaches, plums, and nectarines, okay? I won't speak for all the rest of it but, of course, as all of you
probably love the peaches you buy and plums, but this is what I hear, you know. It looks like fruit; it
feels like fruit; doesn't taste like it. Worse yet, there may be something inside that could harm them.
Not only is this not fun to buy and consume, it's not fun to buy and consume such fruit, it really isn't
much fun growing it either. California Clean Growers wants to change all this. We want to provide
treats and in the process we believe better health, happiness, and beauty can return to our land and
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ourselves.
My children love our ranch. Ther can play along the rows any day of the year. They bring me
bouquets of wildflowers, which grow along the irrigation standpipes.

I d·o n't spray them any more.

They make nature-- they take nature hikes in the eveni.n g to observe many birds and other natural
animals that have taken up residence. They see their daddy happy in his work. They're proud that he
doesn't pollute.

They can sense his great satisfaction with producing something the public truly

wants. If there is to be any hope of preserving family farms, children must grow up loving them first.
Parents who show love of their families, their neighbors, respect for their land, and thankfulness for
nature's incredibly wonderful and complex systems, can expect their children to do the same.
If the State Legislature wants to help farmers, I think that's really admirable. Just remember

that one thing, the thing that put farmers in a position of needing help, was the idea that more is
better.

Be very leery of any science which has as its primary goal greater production.

All the

chemicals that we use, all the new varieties, trying to get more to the market and, of course, in our
commodities, perhaps not in strawberries or less, but we have to diversify.
And just a few, some suggestions. All agricultural science must be directed, and hopefully, you
can help to steer it this way.

It must be directed to seek these things:

A) Clean and sustainable

growing practices for all commodities requiring fewer chemical inputs; B) foods with greater taste,
nutrition, and purity; C) greater knowledge of natural ecological systems and the seeking and
establishing of natural pest predators; and D) greater understanding of the farm environment as it
relates to disease and pest control.
If science can do those things, rather than trying to help increase farmers' production, I think
e~onomics

are going to come, it's going to come around.

Much science can be done in the farmer's fields.

It often doesn't pay to replicate field

situations near laboratories, as is often done. If we want to find out what a cover crop will do, for
example, just have some farmers plant a bunch of different cover crops and watch them.
scientists feel uncomfortable with the many variables that occur on our farms.

Most

How can they ever

know what is really causing what? But that's just the point. It's those variables that we farmers have
to deal with. Science, which leaves them out for the sake of greater precision, can only really offer
results which apply to other laboratory replications. Agricultural science and agriculture often seem
very, very distant. That's because the two just don't often meet. We need to change that.
To that end, California Clean Growers Association recommends to your subcommittee:
A.

That you encourage more agricultural experimentation on actual farm sites. Provide some
crop insurance should any. crop loss occur due to the experiments,

B.

Provide funds for the establishment of a natural farming "hot line" with 800 phone numbers
for each major commodity group. By the way, mine is such a line right now and I get a
phone call about every hour and a half and I stay at home and man the hotline till usually
1 o'clock each day before I go out to work. And they just call in from all over the place
wanting to know how can I farm in a cleaner way that cost me less but my wife is getting
upset.

C.

Instruct the major agricultural research centers -- you know who those are, right, all the
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major ones? Davis and everywhere else. I like that place. I just came from there.
Instruct those people to allow farmers with natural farming experience to help direct
future research. Thes~ farmers should be reimbursed for their time. You know, we never
are. We go in and everybody else is on a payroll, I guess, and I've got guys tending water
and I got to get back to the farm and, you know, we're out thousands. I don't mind actually
'cause we don't contribute to any church or anything. I consider this kind of like the
church, I suppose.
D.

Provide funds for the hiring of a natural farming farm advisor who would coordinate the
compilation, put that all together, and the dissemination, giving it all out, of important
natural farming techniques.
And this person would also help develop transitional
techniques for farmers wanting to reduce chemical use. He would work closely with county
farm advisors to help bring about redirection of advise leading farmers toward more
environmentally sound practices. By the way, all this stuff saves money and I can attest to
that. The farm's doing well. It showed the best profit ever. It won't sound like much
money to you but I've got a good truck for the first time in lZ years and I'm really happy
about that. It doesn't use as much gas either.

California Clean Growers Association is actually carrying on many of these activities listed
above themselves in a limited way. We speak with many farmers sharing our stories of both successes
and our failures-- and we have plenty of them. We have met with the Kearney Field Agricultural
Research Station to suggest future research direction.

We will be meeting with the Pomology

Department at U.C. Davis to suggest departmental direction.
We are all volunteers who envision a new style of farming.

We certainly don't have all the

answers-- it's quite obvious-- but we have had some successes and we believe our techniques can
help a lot of farmers to achieve a more sustainable and economically viable approach to farming.
Thank you for your time. I was going to try to get some fruit. The cold storage was locked. It
frustrates me. I was all excited. I wanted to let you taste some fruit grown without any of these
things. But I brought a book called -- it's -- Jim, do you want to bring it up here? It has to do with
sustainable agriculture. Excuse me?
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Leave a copy of your remarks, if you can, so we can ••.
MR. BUXMAN: Okay. I typed this out real roughly.

It was about midnight when I got this

done. Can I make copies and send them to you? Would that be okay? Or I can leave this with you if
you want.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: It doesn't matter. If you want, we can copy and send it then •••
MR. BUXMAN: It's not bad. I corrected this-- my wife corrected the spelling. I'll leave that
with you.
A couple of items. This book is a compilation of natural farming experts and they've written
about our responsibilities to the public good and to how we can go about bringing a sustainable
agriculture to America, and I hope you have a chance to read that.

I also brought you a copy of

California Farmer, which some of you have read.
The last thing I'll mention is we're not organic farmers exactly, although I've farmed organically
for five years and have learned there are many hardships with that. I have decided that sometimes
it's more ecologically sound to spot treat a bad weed with Roundup than it is for me to go out with a
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weed badger and burn 50 gallons of diesel fuel trying to get it out mechanically. Sometimes ridding a
pest mechanically can be much more damaging to the environment than spot treating with a drop of
herbicide.

And the Amish, by t he way, a typical Amish farm on, let's say, 50 acres would have an

herbicide bill of around 10 bucks a year.

That's to keep away not just weeds from ever getting

started.
So anyway, our group is similar to organic but it does not base our decisions on synthetic versus
natural, as all organic farmers do. They say, "Well, is it synthetic?
Did nature make that?
didn't hold water.

Did man make that? It's evil?

It's good." The minute I looked at a black widow spider, I knew that theory

(Chuckle)

So not all nature-made things are safe.

We want to try to find the

safest and cleanest way to grow our commodities and we're working on it. We need some help. And
on top of that, we would like to stay in business. And we're saving money on the back end. We're not
charging more for our product.

And we hope that you can help and I sure like that task force idea.

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah, thank you very much, Paul.
MR. BUXMAN: Yes.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: And also, a lot of the credit should go to you for your tremendous work of
art that you have here in the file cover.
MR. BU XMAN:

Oh, thank you very much, yeah.

I was hoping to promote visions of a clean

farm. That happens to be one of our muskat growers, not the grower himself. That's one of his fields
on the front.

And I do paintings of beautiful, natural farms to bring people's awareness back to the

fact that farms aren't just green factories. They can be quite stunning. I chose that farm to paint
because it had some natural grasses growing along in the front.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah. It's very good. I know Senator Vuich is very proud of you also.
MR. COLLIN: I have one question before you sit down, please, Paul.
MR. BUXMAN: Okay. Yes.
MR. COLLIN: Out of curiosity, with Kearney Ag Center-MR. BUXMAN: Yes.
MR. COLLIN: --how has the response been with those folks?
MR. BUXMAN: It's been tremendous. Actually, the whole thing is really going. It's not like,
okay, now you guys do something about it. The whole thing is really happening. And I think Tim is
aware of that. Many people are aware that the State is -- farmers a.re moving in a direction really
quite quickly, actually. I think you'll be shocked to find that probably within eight years you won't
recognize the way -- I mean our practices will just be unrecognizable as farming practices.

There

will be strange contraptions going arqund sucking bugs up. I expect to have one of those on my farm
pretty soon. I can envision that helping to get rid of grape leaf hoppers. But they have come to us
and rather than us going to them. So don't you think that's a good sign? They said, "Would you help
us redirect our science here?" So we met with them; we gave them suggestions; and they're trying to
carry those out.

Unfortunately, the projects that we help them to write didn't get funded. And so

that was kind of disappointing. But there's not that much funding for -- well, maybe there is. I don't
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know. But we wanted to test the environments when cover crops are grown year round and we feel
like a lot of bug pressure is diminished because we have permanent crops. And if we can establish the
type of environment that's hospitable to predators, we know for a fact that, that it's going to reduce
a lot of spray material that needs to be put on.
MR. WEISBERG: Excuse me. I just wanted to ask a -MR. BUXMAN: Yes.
MR. WEISBERG: -- quick question.
MR. BUXMAN: Yes, Rick.
MR. WEISBERG: A non-legal question.
MR. BUXMAN: Sure.
MR. WEISBERG: I'm curious, I read the article in Cal Farmer-MR. BUXMAN: Yes.
MR. WEISBERG: -- the other day and it was very impressive. But it strikes me that you're in
kind of a Twilight Zone, rm told -MR. BUXMAN: Yes.
MR. WEISBERG: -- between organic farming -MR. BUXMAN: Right.
MR. WEISBERG: -- and commercial farming. You can't sell your products as organic.
MR. BUXMAN: No.
MR. WEISBERG: But I'm wondering, how is the market -- how's the market for your products,
marketing them in the traditional channels of trade?

Have you had greater success now, less?

Is

your product being marketed somewhat differently from other commercially grown products?
MR. BUXMAN: No, it is not. It is marketed totally unidentified straight in the market so you
never know what you're going to get. Oh, yes •••
MR. JIM SANI: I would like to •••
MR. BUXMAN: Yeah. This is one of our growers, by the way.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Give us your name for the record.
MR. SANI: Jim Sani.
MR. BUXMAN: Go ahead, Jim.
MR. SANI: The reason why this group got together or started, it wasn't so much as to have a
marketing edge because the organic side was there. It was basically the farmers were just tired of
using the chemicals and it was more that we took a stand on our values of doing something in this,
using less chemicals, trying to find alternative ways. It had nothing-- in the beginning, there were a
few farmers that wanted to know if this was going to-- if we gave them a label and they put it on
their fruit box, we'd just give them more money for their fruit. And what it's come down to, it's -we're here to grow fruit.
I grow raisins. I don't get any more money than the next guy for the way I farm but at least I
know that rm not polluting, rm not damaging anything. In fact, I'm enriching the soil and maybe
that's the payment for me. But rm still making money; rm still viable;
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r·mstill having income.

But it

doesn't always have to be profit-motivated to farm •••
MR. WEISBERG:

Do you think it is any easier, though, to move it, that is, it's not any easier

because the middleman knows that the product is going to be relatively clean?

And apparently, this

isn't making any difference in your relationship with the brokers?
MR. SANI:

No, it isn't. Maybe we're doing it more on principle right Iiow.

We feel that in

time, probably the profitability will come from farming this way. Probably the consumer will say,
"Well, I want these products grown this way." But for right now, we're taking the first step forward
in saying, "Let's just do it because it is right for the environment; it's right for our families."
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Thank you.

I just wanted to add one thing.

You talked about getting

more people out there helping agriculture-MR. BUXMAN: Yes.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

-- with the reduction of the use of pesticides and integrated pest

management. Ron Tyler, who was here earlier, he's the Farm Advisor of the University of California
over at Santa Cruz County -- when I was in the Board of Supervisors some years ago, we helped to
get a new person -- her name is Carolyn Pickle -- who still works in that area of IBM and funded by
the University of California Extension Program, that was about 14 years ago when she first entered
the scene there

aro~d

Watsonville when she just come out of-- she just graduated from Davis. And

here she is, the young lady going out telling people who have been farming apples for, you know, 60
years or so, or 50, that they're using too much pesticides and they first doubted her ability to try to
tell them.

But after a while, she was able to penetrate their thinking and suddenly showed -- she

showed them how they can save money. And I think that's something, as you pointed out, if we can
use that more extensively throughout the State of California, if you have any questions, you might
want to contact Ron Tyler at the Farm Advisors' office in Santa Cruz County and he can shed more
light on it.
MR. BUXMAN: Okay.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Well, again, congratulations to you.
MR. BUXMAN: Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Both the presentation of yours and Tim is certainly heartwarming to hear
how we're able to take the initiative. And as Rick pointed out to me, in Tim's case-- where was the
University of California at in the development of these new mechanical means.
MR. BUXMAN: Sure.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

And where were they, you know, you took the leadership yourself by

bringing together some growers who really wanted to reduce

p~sticides

and this was sort of being

done without government or without our university.
MR. BUXMAN: Sure.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: So thanks again for being here. I know you made a long trip over here.
MR. BUXMAN: It's not too bad. Can I tell Rick one more thing?
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah, absolutely.
MR. BUXMAN: Rick, or Mister, Senator Weisberg?
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MR. WEISBERG: Rick will be fine.
MR. BUXMAN: Rick, I was having trouble with the last name. I wanted to tell you, we actually
are concerned about making money. I mean we are nice guys. But, you know (laughter), I have to
face my wife and children too.

But you know what we really think is in the short term trying to

produce lots of fruit has just made an oversupply. Actually, I don't produce quite as much fruit as my
neighbor. I don't. And I actually don't make quite as much as him. And so rm having trouble getting
farmers to try to do this because they're saying, why should I give up a profit to just-- you know, one
farmer told me this: I cannot change a farming practice based on a principle. And that really kind of
reflects a lot of what farmers are in the pinch of doing. They just can't change, you know. It's maybe
the right thing but I'm sorry. I've got bills to pay.
So I thought to myself: I know how I'm going to be able to do this. I'll get another job and I'll
get -- my wife's been working all the time. So I've been able to get three feet on the ground, you
know, the paintings and my wife's teaching, and then the farm. And it's allowed me to experiment on
the ranch and the ranch went down at first and now it's coming back up, and I predict that rm not
going to have super, super yields but here's what I think: I think I'm going to have better tasting fruit
because it's already happening. I know that because the -- first of all, we can leave the fruit on the
tree longer because of the way we pick it and pack it ourselves and we can do it so that it's a little
bit riper. We also know that softness doesn't necessarily go with ripeness. And if I've got really rich
soils with lots of calcium, which I've really packed in there, the fruits will stay firm; it gets sweet.
And a Brix number is a sugar or soluable solids number and might be, just for an example, we're
Brixing between 12. and 14. The average Brix on this particular variety is around 9 to 10. So what
if-- you know how they inspect their peaches right now? They come in and say, "Does it have a scar;
does it have a split pit; is it the right color?"
Now those three things really aren't what the consumer's concerned about. Really, we should
be, and you could change this whole system if you want good, clean fruit. It's real simple. Have the
guys that test fruit-- I wanted to tell you this before but I didn't know if it was appropriate. When
they inspect our fruit, the guy comes in and says, "Okay. Give me the thing and I'll Brix it and see if
it's sweet."

You know, we don't inspect the sweetness. That's incredible, either peaches, plums, or

nectarines. Just test for sweetness; that's the first thing. You wouldn't see guys jumping the gun and
picking at green fruit. Have you ever eaten a piece of green fruit?

Never, right? But it happens,

okay? And that would keep sour fruit from getting on the market, number one.
The next thing, he'd say, "Well, we've got to take a purity test here." And did you know, you
only have to check for a few main things. You don't have to go through this expensive scan; there are
just a few things. You don't have to check all the time.
So they would check it for, number one, sweetness, then purity, and then the next thing is
occasionally we need to run a nutrition test. I found the variety of peach on my ranch that was not
very nutritious called redtop. I used to call them greentop because I used to pick them too green. I
was trying to get them in. They told me they were shipping them to Hong Kong. I said paw-picked,
they'll never make it. And I was listening to this middleman. I pulled those things out, planted a
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variety that, to me, tasted good.

M'~

family now votes on everything we plant.

And if it doesn't

score an 8, 9, or 10 on our personal flavor scale, we don't plant it. I think in the long-run, they're
going to want my peaches. I think that I don't need to charge-- you know, I can't depend on some
premium because of

~

growing practice and it's going to be sold in a little store somewhere called

"health food" and people have to pay double to get what they consider to be good health. That's just,
you know, not going to happen.

I think I want really sweet, delicious, nutritious, wholesome food.

And if I can produce that, I got a sneaking hunch that my family farm is going to be in business, you
know, ten years from now. That's how I think.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Okay, Paul.
MR. BUXMAN: Okie-doke. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: I want to thank you very much for your presentation, also your associate.
MH.. BUXMAN: Yes, Jim.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: And the magazine and the book, we'll take them and read them and •••
MR. BUXMAN: I don't agree with all the people in there, but generally speaking •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO: We appreciate your support for the task force and I think I plan to move
forward with it, subject to a bit more of -- Tim, if you'll write me a letter setting forth of what your
vision of the task force would be, then we'll go ahead and try to implement it.
Okay. Next, we have two speakers left that we'll try to wind up right at that point. Bill Hurst,
General Manager of the Monterey County Flood Control and Water Conservation District.
MR. BILL HURST: Thank you, Senator Mello, and Members of the Committee for giving us a
chance to come over here and speak today. And I want to especially thank Kathy for arranging a spot
on the agenda. Some of the things we've heard this morning are just excellent, and some of them tie
in very well with some of our own concerns.
I want to give you kind of a brief outline.

And I know, Senator Mello, you are already

acquainted with many of the problems that face Salinas Valley and the County of Monterey. But just
for the edification of the others on your committee, I'd like to just kind of touch upon briefly some of
the problems facing the Salinas Valley in particular, but also Monterey County in general.
Number one, we have an overdraft problem in the Salinas

Val~ey.

And Senator Mello, you

helped us considerably. You took the first major step by helping, by sponsoring a bill this last year
that gave us the opportunity to get a stronger hold on the management of our ground water and to
prevent the exportation of ground water out of the Salinas Basin itself and to give us some teeth in
our district act that would help us start to manage some of the situations that we're faced with.
We have a very serious sea water intrusion problem here and that's brought about primarily
from this overdraft situation. We have an. overdraft situation throughout the valley or at least back
upstr~am

in what wP. call the Four Bay Area to some extent. Most St!riously, howevP.r, though, in an

area closer to Monterey Bay, say roughly, from about Gonzales to Monterey Bay, where we get into
some confined aquifers. There, we have a problem of being able to get the water from upstream to
move readily through rather tight soils and tight aquifers into the areas, especially over around
Castroville, the City of Marina, and the major military installation, Fort Ord.
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And those areas are

being seriously impacted by sea water intrusion today, all of it caused by overdraft from pumping in
those areas and, to some extent, upstream. So we're working on problems of this nature.

We also

have, and I think it was mentioned earlier, about the time that I came here this morning, regarding
nitrates contamination in the Salinas Basin. And anywhere, obviously, where you have agriculture,
you have the application of nitrates which contribute to the problem. We also have some historic
problems that go way back, everything from feed lots to nurseries that use a lot of nitrates.
Obviously, we can't eliminate the use of these fertilizers or in due time we wouldn't be able to grow
some of our crops. I'm not an agronomist but that's basically what I'm told. So we have to expect
that there'll always be a certain amount of fertilizers containing nitrates that are going to be needed
to grow the crops that we farm in this community.
But we are looking very seriously at how we can take care of or compensate for some of these
hotspots that have appeared throughout the valley. Recently, this year, our agency, Monterey County
Flood Control and Water Conservation District, released a report on a nitrate study that we've done,
where we have accumulated a considerable amount of information, over several years.
identified many of these hotspots.

We've

And as you're probably aware, that the acceptable levels of

nitrate for drinking water purposes, which is essentially the long-range goal of all of our water
supply, is a maximum of 45 parts per million of nitrates. And we, in some areas, have found nitrate
contamination far, far exceeding that, 600 parts per million and some, I think, even greater than that.
So there are some real concerns as they affect the potential use for drinking supply, drinking-water
supply, throughout the valley. Obviously, it's not as great a concern when you're using it strictly for
agricultural irrigation. But in the long-term, we have to look at the ultimate beneficial use of the
ground waters in our basin, which is for drinking water also.
Some of the things that we're doing, just to give you an idea, several years ago, about five years
ago, the Salinas Valley Water Advisory Commission, which is appointed by the Monterey County
Board of Supervisors, appointed an ad hoc committee to study the problem of sea water intrusion.
And it started off a very small committee made up primarily of people in the agricultural business in
the Castroville area and in the area around Salinas. And as time has gone on, we have expanded this
committee to now to include somewhere around 14, 15 members representing people from the midvalley to the Castroville area, from Fort Ord, Marina, and from the south county area because we
have recognized over time that this is really a county-wide problem and a basin-wide problem rather
than just a localized problem in Castroville alone.
Through this and over the last several years, this committee has essentially come up with what
we hope are some practical solutions for the long-term abatement of sea water intrusion. We know
that if we don't do something, the alternative is just stay where we are and don't do anything, that
the problem is not going to go away. It still might increase. It's going to gradually move towards the
City of Salinas and other areas and impact everybody's water supply. So something has to be done.
And as you're probably well aware, once you have sea water intrusion into ground water basins or an
aquifer for all practical purposes, you can give up that aquifer for any future use unless you're going
to raise seaweed. So we have to do something about these sorts of things.
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Originally, we looked at strictly the Castroville problem, just the agricultural problem. But it
became apparent after time, when places like the City of Marina had to abandon numerous drinking
water wells-- I think there was something like nine or ten wells that had to be abandoned for several
years-- some of these are very, very expensive wells-- and it's turning out now that they were not
only part of the problem but also had to be part of the solution, not only for their own area but
ultimately for the Castroville area too.

Fort Ord, same situation.

They gradually had to move

eastward on the reservation to put in new wells, to try to correct the situation from their own water
supply. And we have a major military installation here that contributes a tremendous amount to our
economy.

And they have no long-term, assured supply of water.

So all of these things had to go

together and we came up with what we now essentially define as the sea water intrusion project
which in reality now is developing into two projects-- one to supply agricultural water to the
Castroville area, and a second project to supply affordable water to Fort Ord and Marina.
talked about two separate projects.

And we

And what we're really doing is where there's two separate

sources of water but the interconnecting medium really is money that has to flow back and forth
between these two areas. Castroville needs Fort Ord and Marina in there to help finance some of the
Castroville project, since we're all in the same basin and since Fort Ord and Marina were part of the
problem in helping to contribute to the overdraft. It was decided, both by the Marina County Water
District and the Fort Ord people, that it was appropriate that they become more of a financial
partner in solving the problem.

Many years ago, when the Zones Z and Z-A were formed to build

Naciemento and San Antonio dams and reservoirs, Fort Ord and Marina at that time were not
included in the formation of those zones.

And so through the years, those dams and benefits that

they brought were financed primarily by the agricultural community and also the cities in the Salinas
Basin. Again, as I say, Fort Ord and Marina did not participate in those. Now they're up against the

gun. They don't have the long-term and short water supply. And so it became very, very obvious that
they had to participate. And in order to participate, they were going to have to join the club. Marina
and Salinas were going to have to annex to the zones and they were going-- we were going to have to
develop a formula whereby they could pay, since they had been benefiting to whatever extent that
anyone else had benefited in the coastal area, they had to pay some kind of a fair share for
participation in those dams and then an ongoing situation for us to build the projects that will provide
them with the water that they're going to need.

So they are now, for all practical purposes at this

point, at least members of the committee, to put these projects together and we hope that within the
next very few years we will actually be able to commence construction.

We have started on the

process, in the case of the Castroville area, of developing a loan application for a Bureau of
Reclamation PL-984 loan. And we are negotiating now with Fort Ord to hopefully develop some kind
of a formula and determine how much money it's going to take Fort Ord for their participation in the
project just as the volume in the club. We're looking at very, very substantial costs of these projects,
far gr'e ater than we had originally anticipated. When we did some original -- well, I won't say they
were horseback guesses-- they were much better than that. But I don't think the problem was well
known and the cost of construction.

But now, we're looking at, for the Castroville area, for an
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irrigation project to take surface water from the Salinas River and put into a distribution system that
will have to be constructed, we're looking at something like $44 million. At this particular point, that
being slightly over the ceiling allowed under a PL-984 project, we're hoping that somewhere along the
line, they can either reduce that number, and maybe by the time we get ready with our loan
application, that the ceiling will have come up a little bit from the Bureau of Reclamation and we
can squeeze it under or we may have to eliminate something in the project.

When we look at the

Marina and Fort Ord portion of the project for affordable water supply, we're talking about going
back upstream in an area, oh, roughly between Spreckels and Chualar and putting in what we call a
dispersed well system which would collect water from the ground water, put it into about a 4Z-inch
pipeline, take it down on River Road and Reservation Road to Fort Ord and split at that point and
also go to Marina. Here, we're looking at a project in the cost nature of $Z5 million. So when you
add all those things together, we've got a very, very extensive proposition on our hands and we're
working our heads off to try to come up with some way of reducing those costs but we haven't really
succeeded yet, so one other aspect that we're looking at.
None of these particular projects really bring us any more water. And there are projects that
have been proposed in the past in the Salinas Valley. rm sure they're going to come around again at
some future date but the timing is perhaps not now and that was the one time a few years back the
proposed construction of a dam on the Arroyo Seco River. I think we at the district feel, and many of
the people in the valley feel, that that project ultimately is going to have to be built. It can yield
anywhere from 80,000-thousand-acre field of additional water that we have available.

And it would

go a long, long way towards correcting the overdraft situations that we face in the Salinas Valley. In
fact, it would correct it in the long term. Right now, we're looking at an overdraft somewhere in the
ballpark of, depending upon which hydrology report you read, anywhere from ZS- to, say, 50,000-acre
feet of water annually.

Our ground water basin in the Salinas Valley is a large basin when you

consider the size of the valley.

Sometimes I think we kind of would like to consider that it's

practically bottomless. But I think it goes without saying, as we look around, what's happened, not
only in our own state, but throughout the United States, that these giant aquifers, and some of them
are far, far greater than ours, have been depleted to the point where there are potentially disasterous
consequences looming on the near horizon. And that can happen to us too. It's not a bottomless pit
and we know that on the long-term, looking over the last 30 to 50 years, we do have this continuing
overdraft. We've seen our ground water levels drop. On the east side of our basin, we see water that
used to be fairly shallow. It's now somewhere, in some spots, 140 feet below sea level. Those are not
going to change unless we do something about it. So we're having to look at how do we develop new
resources for water.
As I mentioned, the Arroyo Seco is a future possibility. Another possibility that we're looking
at right now, and we think has a great possibility, if somehow, we can afford it, that's the big
question mark,

~d

that's the use of reclaimed water.

This is a-- there is a new, large, regional

treatment plant being built just north of Marina to serve the cities of Salinas, Marina, the peninsula
areas; and they're ultimately going to be capable of delivering, oh, somewhere in the neighborhood of
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about 25,000-acre feet of reclaimed water a year. That's the potential of those. That's a source of
water that we see at least in the near future.

When the plant goes on line this coming year, it'll

basically be wasted in an alcove of the ocean. Now what do we have to do to use that water? The
water that's now, that's going to be wasted in the ocean now is secondary treatment water.

And in

order to go, to be able to use that, say, in the agricultural area in Castroville, it's going have to
receive tertiary treatment.
Some of you may be aware-- I know, I'm quite sure, Senator Mello, you're aware of the Marisa
project that was developed here a few years back in the Castroville area to try out the concept of
reclaimed water. It was about a five-year research project. And the outcome of that basically was
that this water is not only suitable for agriculture but is suitable for agriculture for crops that are
sprayed and on the crops that are eaten raw. So these things can be done and there seems to be no
market inhibition to it. And so the potential is there. The price tag on it -- we've already looked at
that -- as I've mentioned, $44 million for an ag project. And in order to use reclaimed water, you're
looking at something like another $12-$13 million on top of that. Without the reclaimed water, we're
already at just about the limit. In fact, we are at the limit that agriculture can afford and still stay
competitive. So these are some of the problems that we're having to face.

And I guess now we get

down to the point: What can you do to help us? Well, you've already done a number of things.
Senator, you have certainly helped tremendously in bringing about the Clean Water and the
Water Reclamation Bond Laws.

Those things are extremely helpful.

They can bring us the

opportunity to borrow money at a very low interest rate. That's one possibility. We've been told by
the Bureau of Reclamation that the reclaimed water project would be eligible for a PL-984 loan. And
those are, well, the way we work it and determined it now, those are going to be practically a nointerest loan, not totally, but at extremely low interest.

And so it begins to make those projects

financially feasible. But we're going to need the help from the State.
We applied this last year for one of the loans under the previous water bonds that were sold.
We didn't quite make the eligibility

list.

I think we fell a little short.

There's another one now

coming up and we're going to be back in there banging on the doors to see if we can borrow
somewhere, line up the ability to borrow about $5 million to add onto this project.

The maximum

that we can borrow -- and I don't have the -- it seems to me it's somewhere around, slightly in excess
of $28 million that we can borrow from the Bureau of Reclamation on that no-interest loan. We're
going to need some more, obviously. We're going to need other sources of low-interest funds. And
then whatever is left over, it's going to have to come from other local sources, such as a local bond or
something of that nature.
So the financing is critical. We've got to build this project. It's not going to get any cheaper;
the problem isn't going to go away.
losing -- in our 180-foot aquifer,
area.

It's going to just continue to get worse and worse.

we'~e

We're

losing approximately 300 acres annually in the Castroville

And we see this to some extent accelerating, to some extent, as I say, and we also see it

heading ultimately towards this city right here. It's going to be growing from 100,000 population to
some figure in the not-too-distant future of 150, maybe 165,000 people. Where are they going to get
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the water?
So these are the concerns that the Flood Control District has, the Flood Control and Water
Conservation District. We're very actively in the process of assessing and reassessing our role in this
community where historically we've been, I would have to say, probably more of a reactive agency.
We've been concerned with the flood scheme, and to some extent, the water conservation efforts that
we practiced have been mainly operating Naciemento and San Antonio reservoirs and making sure
that the ground water of the Salinas Basin was recharged from those reservoirs. And that's going to
always be a major portion of our program.

However, we're looking more and more at essentially

water resource management in the county and we're expanding our ability, both in the hydrologic
areas as well as the civil engineering areas, and management areas, so that we can hopefully do a
much better job.
Again, the help that we're going to need from you, Senator Mello, and others will be to help us
in any way that you possfuly can to get financial support through these loan programs. We also have
some other, I would say, lesser needs, lesser in the standpoint that the dollar is involved, but no less
important.

We have to develop a very comprehensive ground water or water resource and

management plan for the county. The Department-- I'm sorry-- the State Water Resources Control
Board has funds for these programs available. We need to go after some of those. And we'd like your
support, if we possibly can get that.
You recently submitted a proposal to develop a geographic information system which would be a
tremendous tool for us to use in determining where our water resources are and also to help all the
planning agencies within the county to determine what their water resources are. We fell short on
the eligibility list and we're going to be back knocking on their door again. Those kinds of things, you
can be a tremendous help for us. And we need to keep you plugged in and know what's going on and
where we're going on these things.
I think, just to kind of wrap up, I would like to also tell you about one other thing that the Board
just recently approved. In fact, I believe it was October 11, I spoke to you earlier about the nitrates
problem-- not a new problem but it's one that we, from the standpoint of taking a very active stance
on it, it's fairly new in that sense. And the Board adopted a resolution, number 88-500, to create an
ad hoc Salinas Valley Nitrate Advisory Committee. This committee is made up and has really been
pushed by the agricultural interests in this county who are very, very concerned about these nitrate
problems. They see it as something that's going to come home to roost more and more every day, and
they've gotten behind this.
And I'd just like to take one more brief minute to just kind of give you an idea of what the
charges and the purposes of that committee are going to be. And hopefully, we'll establish this as a
sunset clause in it so that when we did one of these things that go on and on forever and ever. Oh,
I'm sorry about that. The charges and the purposes of the committee shall be to detail the issues
associated with nitrate contamination and define and prioritize problems to be addressed.

The

committee will, number two, the committee will identify practices that may contribute to nitrate
contamination and that could have an impact on beneficial uses. Three, it will serve as a forum to
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resolve

conflict

and

seek

concurrence

contamination of ground water.

within

the

community

on

issues regarding nitrate

Four, it will detail current programs and agencies involved with

mitigation of nitrate contamination.

Five, it will identify needed technical and scientific studies.

Six, identify alternative, institutional, or administrative programs available for both the public and
private sector that will mitigate nitrate contamination of ground water supplies.
State Task Force Activity.

Seven, monitor

Eight, identify potential sources of funding for projects and programs

relating to solving nitrate contamination. Nine, report findings and make policy recommendations to
the Board of Supervisors.

Ten, advise county staff, the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor's Council

Members and staff of the cities within the county on issues related to the development, approval, and
administration of a course of action to mitigate nitrate contamination of ground water in the Salinas
Valley. And eleven, hold informal public meetings and workshops to provide public information and
receive comment during preparation of a course of action and associated programs to mitigate
nitrate contamination.
And I have to tell you, gentlemen, that this committee made up of many of the people that you
know in the agricultural community here have really gotten behind this and are determined to find
hopefully solutions to this as well as our sea water intrusion. And I would like to open this up for any
questions, if I may, at this time.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Well, thank you very much, Bill, for your great presentation along the

lines that we'd be willing to help any way we can.

As you know, Proposition 83 on the ballot, that

deals with water reclamation, was my own measure that I got on the ballot. And I think the voters
will approve it because it will help provide $65 million for grants and loans to primarily smaller
communities.

The other one is Proposition 8Z that I helped Assemblyman Jim Costa get.

We

coauthored that to get it on the ballot. That will provide for water development and water resource
management.

So that's another $60 million.

So both of them together will help -- when you

mentioned the $44 million, rm always reminded about the battle that we had when we bought Alaska.
It was $7 million and it was termed "Sewer's Follies" and they debated it in Congress for weeks as a
waste of money. Of course, everyone knows now what a bargain Alaska was. But the point. is, when
something appears to cost a lot of money, I think we have to weigh what are the alternatives. And
while it may cost $44 million, it bas to be relative to our ability to pay.

But if we don't do it,

especially in a rich agricultural area like Monterey County has, if we don't have water, then where
are we going to be? And I think, you know, we just have to go out and get the best value we can but
it's of prime importance that we move towards water resource management and also reclamation
which appears to be very expensive. But I think, with the kind of technology that should be available,
hopefully, we can come up_and be able to treat water for reuse because it's going to have to happen
sooner or later anyway.
MR. HURST: That's right. I might add one thing that I really didn't probably clarify. When I
talked about that $44 million, the area that's going to have to shoulder that burden really only covers
about 1Z,800 irrigated acres. So that's a pretty high price tag.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Yeah.
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MR. HURST: For that amount of land. It is prime agricultural land, obviously.
CHAIRMAN MELLO: Land without water, they can go back to raising barley or something of
that type.
MR. HURST: That's right.
MR. COLLIN: I would ask that on your committee studying nitrates, as you move forward, if
you could keep, I would appreciate being made aware of what some of the suggestions, progress and
attempts at solutions, if you could keep us informed.
MR. HURST: We'd be very happy to, Mr. Collin, sure.
CHAffi.MAN MELLO: Okay, Bill, thank you very much.
MR. HURST: Thank you very much for the opportunity.
CHAffi.MAN MELLO: I want to move to our next water expert, a person who's been of great
help to me and a former member of the Board of Directors of the Monterey Peninsula Water
Management District and now a consultant on water issues. He's got his own prepared remarks we'd
be happy to have, Woody. So let me introduce Woody Woodworth who's our last scheduled speaker,
unless someone from the audience wants to also make a statement, we'd be happy to hear from you.
MR. WILLIAM WOODWORTH: Thank you, Senator Mello. Appreciate the opportunity to say a
few words today. rve made a formal presentation there but I will not cover it all. rll just cover the
highlights.
rd like to point out that some years back, just after the 76-77 drought, I inquired at a water
conference as to why the state never considered the possibility of a third year of a drought in their
economic analysis. He was a top executive of DWR. He shrugged and said to me, he says, "More than
two years of a drought would be an economic disaster too distasteful to think about."

This was less

than ten years ago.
rm a transplant to California and have lived here for some ZS years since my retirement from
the Air Force. My interest in both water and agriculture stems from my early career as a military
meteorologist and geophysicist and computer specialist. And later, I became an investment advisor
involving some syndicated farm land in California which was a real blowout. We lost our shirts.

I

continually relate water issues to agriculture even if it is only when rm playing golf on one of those
turf farms that we have around the area. Water issues is my main hobby now. rm supposed to be
retired.
Some observations and concerns about agriculture in California:

rm particularly concerned

about the profitability and the health of the farming industry in California. It is still a very sick
industry and hardly an investor's "paradise". You can't draw capital. Investors will not buy it.
I do watch quite closely the agricultural complex in the county, the Salinas Valley, and the
farming problems involving water and drainage in the state and especially in the semi-desert western
states. I read considerable on the issues, clipped continually from the media and reflect upon the
macro patterns, macro patterns, of irrigated agriculture related to long historical records; a thousand
years or more where possible. Yet, I also get quite involved at the local levels with water, sewage,
and drainage policies and actions by political parties and bodies.
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I just returned from a trip to Fresno for an all-day conference on the 1989 Drought Contingency
Planning, which was one of five such workshops that DWR set up last week and proved to be very
informative from what rve heard over there.

Let me comment briefly on a few ideas that I

uncovered at that session and pertain to some later input to the fiual Drought Contingency Planning
Guidelines that are due up in Sacramento on November 7.
The North Central Coast area, the assessment of the 1989 Water Supply Adequacy, was hardly
adequate and misleading.

The Salinas Valley and Pajaro Valley, major agricultural basins, was not

even depicted. In Monterey County, the 'Monterey Peninsula Water Management District, which is
involved in less than 5 percent of the county water supply, and it is not an actual purveyor of water,
contributed the statement that they may reduce mandatory rationing some 25-40 percent to meet
1989 operations. That leaves a reader to try to relate as to how the major agricultural area in the
Salinas Valley will fare in 1989.

My quote is:

Why was the Monterey Peninsula Water District

thought to represent the whole of the county's supply adequacy? Watsonville was not mentioned nor
was the greater Salinas area which consumes considerable water.

All Salinas urban and rural areas

rely 100 percent, 100 percent, upon ground water and the aquifers under some of the major growing
agricultural land are very seriously threatened with encroaching salt water intrusion at multiple
levels. This is a very serious problem, as Bill just pointed out.
My contention is that the north central coast area, if not Monterey County itself, should be
labeled red, r-e-d, as critically impacted by a third-year drought. Agriculture, which uses nearly 90
percent of the total fresh water supply in Monterey County, some 600,000 acre feet, is actually
mining water now and 1989 should provide severe damage to the ground water supplies, not only for
agriculture but for the cities and urban communities surrounding the farm areas.

"Out of sight, out

of mind." It is this unseen damage caused by the excessive draw down of the only water supply the
entire farming basin has that does not seem to be reflected in the DWR or state documents or
drought threats.
As I recall, in the drought of 76-77, Monterey County was overlooked in the state documents as
having weathered the drought satisfactorily. Take a look at the state publications referring to that
time, just as a refresher. Yet, the Monterey Peninsula and its primarily urban exposure did have a
major water shortage and rationing, very severe. The data sent to the state files had included the
water situation in the Salinas Valley with the peninsula statistics which, of course, were dwarfed by
the heavy numbers of water use in the valley.

Salt water intrusion was indeed accelerated by the

earlier drought and the aquifers were not rebuilt or refilled in the succeeding ten years. And this is a
major problem with agriculture.

Will this confusion over statistical averaging of different water

sheds and basins continue to the detriment of both the rural and the urban areas?
The Fresno meeting panelists made some interesting water use presentations relating to their
primary water sources, surface water, and how they expected to cope in 1989 with their "reserve"
ground water.

Here in our area, looking at it from the Salinas Valley area and the north central

coast, we have some difficulty relating to their solutions since we are already committed to the
"reserves", which is our primary source of water in the ground.
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One must conclude that, as often seems to be the case, the central coast is "in another world".
And if we seem to get a little sympathy and understanding at the state level for our unique,
independent water supply system, it might have been nice for the DWR to schedule one of the road
trip teams to the central coast agricultural centers like Salinas and Watsonville. Maybe more of the
water experts at the DWR and State Water Resources Control Board will think differently about our
water, sewage, and drainage problems if they would isolate us from the big valley and the big
California Water delivery systems. It's very difficult for the state. I go up there often. I see that.
They can't relate to what we have down here.
I did get some enthusiasm out of particular people over there about our drought threats in '89 at
the meeting. I'm hoping that some of the DWR staff from Fresno can visit Monterey County in the
next two weeks to help us reply to the DWR with strong comments on the Drought Planning
Guidelines. I am hoping-- these guidelines, by the way, should have been developed at least a year
ago, not now.

We had the lead time and they're now just getting at it. However, it may be very

important-- rm hoping we at least can establish an actual central coast drought task force under
SB 3Z and quickly get back into contention for competing for available funds for drought emergency.
Monterey County does in fact-- we have major water supply problems and water quality problems
that require remedies instead of continued political hassling and jurisdictional disputes. We have lots
of thiefdoms down here fighting over jurisdictions. To me, there is a definite lack of cohesiveness
and interface among our many governmental agenices at this working level in our water basin. At
times, this deficiency in communications among policymakers is glaring and destructive, leading to
mediocrity or worse. Legislators beware.
Too little discussion was discussed at Fresno on water recycling and reclamation. In the past 10
years in many areas, like the central coast, we have botched the potential use of reclaimed water.
Very sad.
On a broad-based scale, I had hoped the state drought experts would talk about the fundamental
economic disaster threats of a third year of a drought.

It is this real disaster threat to all

Californians, all Californians, that should be the true incentive to take strong steps now before it is
too late to recover.

This needs to be spelled out in clear figures, for the laymen and the policy

makers. Where are the economists in this drought contingency planning?
rm attaching an appropriate essay, written a few years ago, on Major Barriers to Water
Conservation and Recyling.

It's applicable especially to the agricultural industry.

I feel quite

strongly about these various syndromes that are indeed major barriers to "getting the job done".

I

bump into them daily in my travels and reading and at the many meetings in this part of California
coast. I will just list these barriers and let the curious refer to the script and maybe get some laughs:
the Big Dam Syndrome; the Regional Sewer Syndrome; the NIMBY Syndrome, Not in My Back Yard
Syndrome; the Small is Beautiful Syndrome; the Save Our Butts Syndrome, SOB; the Kludgemanship
Syndrome; and the Aquifer Syndrome. ru leave those attachments of the speech and you can do that
and I think it's worth reading. Let me just •••
CHAIRMAN MELLO: That would make a good poem. (Laughter)
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MR. WOODWORTH: Thank you. Let me just close with this short statement: The third year of
a drought can be a major economic disaster for all of California. We must take strong action "to roll
with the punches" when Mother Nature delivers to us in this Cadillac Desert that we live in. We live
in a desert -- we must recognize that -- and it throbs. We must constrain the overuse of irrigation in
agriculture, particularly during droughts, even if it means reducing crops and tillage, changing crop
mixes, and setting firm targets for reduced reduction each consecutive year during the drought. We
cannot just use Band-Aid approaches and excuses.

If we don't get our act together and bring

irrigation under control during droughts, our water resources, for urbanites and rurals, will be sorely
deficient to maintain the California lifestyle of the past. Be sure your legislation treats basins like
the Salinas and Pajaro Valleys as unique land and water resources. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:
presentation.

Woody, thank you very much.

As usual, you made an excellent

And through your background and knowledge about water, it's really helpful and we

appreciate it.
That's the end of our scheduled speakers. Does anyone here have anything before we adjourn?
If not, let me ask each of my colleagues here if they have any closing statements. John? We'll start
with you, John Olow, on behalf of Assemblyman Seastrand.
MR. OLOW: As we all know, the Assemblyman is quite involved in these issues and I thank you,
sir, for -- and I know he would want me to thank you too for including us in this. As I say, I've got
many notes, things here which, you know, certainly relating to comments and so forth from those that
appeared before, this group this morning, and I'll see that the Assemblyman gets it. Thank you again.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Please extend our thanks to Assemblyman Seastrand for allowing you to
join us here this morning as well by representing him.
Rick? That's how attorneys are. They don't talk unless you pay a fee for this. (Laughter) No,
that's not true. Thank you for coming down. We appreciate your input -- you've added tremendously
to our hearing.
Well, Jim, representing Senator Rose Ann Vuich.

You've got a lot of notes to take home and

tell the Senator?
MR. COLLIN: Yes. And again, I thank you for the courtesies extended and I'll pass that along
to the Senator.
CHAffiMAN MELLO: Okay. Kathy Huston, Chief Consultant to the Committee.
MS. HUSTON: I'd just like to thank those people that are still here for coming in and testifying
at the hearing. Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN MELLO:

Okay. Thanks again. It's been a very productive hearing and we'll have

the transcript available in due time and we'll try to make it available to those on the sign-up list as
well as other Members of the Legislature.

So thank you all for being here.

adjourned,

-oOo--
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The meeting will be

APPENDICES

BIOTECHNOLOGY REPORT-STATE CWA
NOVEMBER 1988
I would like to thank Betsy and the state board for having the
vision to include Biotechnology among the areas being monitored
h.y CWA. While, I feel that we have barely scratched the surface
of the complex and ever changing area of biotechnology; hopefully
CWA members now have a slightly better understanding of the
tremendous potential of biotechnology as consumers and as
articulate CWA spokeswomen for Agriculture.
BIOTECH IN THE NEWS
"Biotechnology is being called the last great technological
frontier of the century. And its potential for good probably is
greater than from the other great technologies--nuclear energy,
and space exploration.'' "The Congressional Office of Technology
Assessment, which has targeted biotechnology as one of America's
industries of tomorrow."
"However, the USDA spends less than 5 percent of its annual
research budget on biotechnology," said Sen. Patrick Leahy, "and
this is shortsighted." Jerry Caulder, president of Mycogen of
San Diego was recently quoted as saying, "new dollars need to be
made available to our plant scientists. The best minds are not
going into agriculture because the funding is not there."
"But things are happening to change that focus. The growing
chemo-phobia is spurring private industry development of biopesticides that promise to replace many broad-spectrum chemical
pe~ticides. The bio-pesticides are safe and natural."
"Biotechnology is proving to be both powerful and safe, despite
some well founded fears. Researchers at Clemson Univ. recently
released 10-million-billion bioengineered bacteria into the
environment in an agricultural field test on wheat. They found
that the bacteria do what they are designed to do and that they
stay where they are supposed to stay, in this case in th~ ground
and around the roots of the plant."
"The Congressional Clearinghouse on the Future estimates that by
the year 2000, biotechnology could be a $100-billion business
worldwide."
"For the produce industry, the new technology promises to defuse
many of the food safety problems. The research could cut costs,
extend growing seasons, change production areas and lead to
produce with ~nhanced color, appearance and nutrition. That's
not a bad future."--Condensed from Larry Waterfield editorial The
Packer-7/88

" Genetic engineering, has the potential to radical l y increase a
farms productivity almost overnight," according to Michael
Phillips, Director of Food and Agricultural StudiPs for the
Office of Technology Assessment. "Research into the class of
chemicals known as growth promotants may result in a dramatic
increase in profitability for pork producers. Porcine
somatotropin. for example could have a pronounced impact on the
pork industry." Pork produced with the somatotropin enlarges the
loin eye area and lowers the fat content of the meat, and .
similar advances are expected in the beer industry.--Excerpt
from Calif. Ag. Tech. Institute Update-10/~8
!GENE Biotechnology recently announced that it's new Biological
nematicide ClandoSan has received unrestricted EPA approval.
ClandoSan is an all-natural, chitin-based, granular nematicide
that acts as a controlled release organic nitrogen fertilizer.
ClandoSan is made form crab shell wastes, and it is not toxic to
mammals, and acts by promoting the growth of normal soil microbs
that produce chitinase and other enzymes that destroy the cell
walls and eggs of disease causing nematodes.
Insect resistant cotton could result from recent discoveries at
Mississippi State University where researchers have isolated
genes involved in the production of "gossypol" , a naturally
occurring compound that gives cotton resistance to tobacco
budworms and armyworms.
Molecular Genetics has recently received a patent for a herbicide
tolerant corn. The patented strain of corn, was de~eloped
through tissue culture and genetic ~dentification techniques and
is tolerant to the imadazinone class of herbicides. "Pioneer is
currently field testing and developing this trait in some
hybrids," reports Mark King, vice-president of Molecular
Genetics.
Walnut trees could benefit from recent discoveries in gene
transfer. Researchers have recently transferred a foreign gene,
which confers insect resistance into the · genetic makeup of
conventional strains of walnut treee.--The. Packer 9/88
"American agrict1ltural companies spent about $130 billion on R&D
in 1987. About ? percent of that, or $2.5 billion, was for
biotechnology. Of the mone.y spent on biotech, about $400 mill ion
was s pent on plant research and about $200 million on animal
research. The total spent on high tech agricultural research
wm1ld be about $600 mi .11 ion. " according to figures from the
Consulting Resources Corp . which monitors biotech research . -Exc~rpts form Biotech Blitz article-Oct. '88 Agrichemica l Age.
Biotech Chair

October 24,1988
Toa California State Senate Sub-Committee on Agriculture

Frorns Richard Ro Peterson
14308 Eo Nebraska
Kingsburg, Califo 93631
Subjects California Clean Growers
My wife and I have been farming for 12 years in
this Central San Joaquin Valley location. We ~arm
tree fruit and grapes. Prior to purchasing this ranch
we had no direct experience with farm management. A~
a result, we were farming by the seat of our pants,
learn as we go, so's to speak. Our main source of
knowledge and instruction carne from neighbors and
relatives. Therefore, we did as most people, using
commercial fertilizers and pesticides. Our neighbor
would spray,so we assumed it was time for us to spray.
And so it went.
A couple of years ago we were introduced to a
new concept in farming. This concept is simply to
~be conscious
of what is happening in our fields.
We are now building up the soil with organic matter
to create a living medium, which through proper balancing
of ingredients, provides an environment which:-res~lts
in healthy, productive, more pest resistant plantso
The concept also includes monitoring the pests.
Since we are not experts in entomology, we hired an
!PM (Independent Pest Manger). He is an entomologist
who is independent of any chemical company. He walks
through our fields once a week, checking for problem
insects, as well as beneficial insects. After each
visit he gives us a report and a recommendation if
a problem does exist. Having these weekly reports gives

2

us confidence so we don't have to do scheduled
spraying on a just-in-case basis. Also his recommendations are usually treatments that use less toxic
or non toxic materials. The cost of this service is
more than compensated for by a savings in pesticide
expenditures.
This new concept of farming,(which is actually
a regeneration of age-old techniques) is the basis
of the California Clean Growers. This is not an
organic farming group. It is, however, a g~oup of
.
.
farmers, banding their experiences together, in order
to approach a more organic type of farming. Cooperation
is a key to this farming approach. Sharing ideas and
methods is the fastest way to gain techniques in order
to farm with less pesticides and other toxic materials.
We are working from a grass roots level (no pun
intended) to spread the knowledge and experience for
a more environmentally safe method of farming. We would
like to encourage you to approach this same goal from
a governmental l.evel. This can be accomplished by
directing funds ir;tto research projects. Some areas
of research might be organic matter in soils, cover
crops for soil enrichment, . developement of more
pheromones for insect control, experimenting with
finding more predator insects for biological control,
just to name ~ few.
Thank you

Richard Peterson

---,3 -·~

October, 24, .988
To• California State Senate Sub-commitee on Agriculture
From• Karen Peterson
14)08 Eo Nebraska
Kingsburg, California, 93631
Subjects California Clean Growers
When Dick and I started farming in 1976 we were
committed to farming our thirty acres of grapes with
as little pesticdes as possible. When we replaced
some of our vines with peach trees in 1979 we knew that
we would be using more pesticides. With the increase
in the use of pesticides it w~•t long before
herbicides became a part of our spray program. We
gradually slipped onto the use of more chemicals.
I was unhappy with this direction but there seemed
to be no one who could advise us on a different
approach.
In April 1988 we hired Larry Carmean, an entomology graduate of U C Berkeley, as our pest management consultant. Larry comes once a week to check the
bugs in our fields and advise ·us as to how we should
deal with them. Since April our chemical bill has
decreased with no loss of quantity or quality of
our fruit. It's great to ha.ve the advic.a of someone
whose livlihood does not depend . upon the amount of
chemicals he can sell us.
Besides reducing our use cf pes~icides and
herbicides, we are discontinuing the use of chemical
fertilizers. We are using grape pumice and a cover
. crop to build a healthy soil that will grow stronger
vines and trees more resis~ant to bugs.

I would urge this committee to consider
allocating funds for research projects bent on
finding out how plants. soil and pests interact
na tu rally. This knowl cd ge of the natural way can
sometimes be used to our advantage. Already the
oriental fruit moth pheromone has been identified
and developed for use jn our tree fruit.
This spring we will not spray our peach trees
with pesticides for the OFM as we have every yeara
Instead we will place four twist ties in each of
our trees in February. The pheromones emitted from
each tie confuse the male moth so that he is unable
..
to find the female and· mateo W}:.ile this treatment
is a little more expensive than ~he conventional
sprays it i~ 100% effectivea And most importa~t
of all it eliminates the use of pesticides for the
control of this pest.
Farming is exciting again! The exchange of information and support that comes from California
Clean is just what we neededa

Chester Smeds
Oct. 24, 1988
I am a third generation family farmer located near Reedley in eastern
Fresno County. We farm 120 acres of peaches, nectarines, asian pears, and
table grapes. For the past 28 years we have t:asicJ5lly followed the standard
recommendations for fertilization and pest control offered by the University of
Calif., local county farm advisors, and of course, chemical companies.
Although very chemically dependent in our farming practices, we fortunately
had elected not to use some of the more dangerous and environmentally
unbalancing pesticides. As a general practice we never sprayed just for
"insurance" against a possible pest outbreak. The result of these facts is
that our personal "pesticide treadmill" is possibly running a little slower
than some of the farmers in our area.
Four years ago I was reintroduced to natural fertilizers by an aggressive
compost salesman. Today we are not completely weaned off of chemical
fertilizers. Recent soil analysis has reaffirmed our need to continue our
transition to natural fertilizers such as compost, grape pomace, manures,
and cover crops.
This last summer I became aware of a group known as California Clean
Growers Assoc. Further investigation revealed that Calif. Clean was addressing
the problems of pesticide residues, soil fertility, and high chemical input
farming in a positive forward-looking manner. A ray of hope to remove ourselves from our "l?esticide treadmill" was being shown to us. As new members
of Calif. Clean we,are committed to this goal. With the 1989 crop year being
the year of transitio~nto a more natural way of farming, we felt compelled
to do some serious exPerimentation to determine what problems we might be
facing. Garnering all the advice we could from Calif. Clean members with
more experience in natural farming, we began trying alternative methods and
materials for pest control. To our amazement materials such as insecticidal
soap, spray oils, and organic insecticides applied at the right time and
concentration had very positive results. This isn't to say we didn't have any
failures. We did. Our failures can be attributed basically to the lack of
complete knowledge of that exact rate, concentration, and timing of our
treatments. Specifically, preharvest, we had success controlling mites in
asian pears, peaches and nectarines with insecticidal soap. Postharvest we
had excellent control of mites in peaches and nectarines with only oil. Leaf
hoppers in table grapes were held to managable levels in most blocks with
insecticidal soap and Pyrenone. More work needs to be done in the timing
of early sprays to insure more consistency of control. In all treatments of
both mites and hoppers the natural predators remained alive and well.
The success ~f these treatments is definitely attributable to this fact. One
problem that faces us and all food producers is the world of fungi. Being
probably one of the largest single forms of life on this planet, working
knowledge of alternatives to traditional chemical answers for some varieties
of crops or location of these crops, prove to be in many cases, illusive.

With all the successes that we and other memb~rs of Calif. Clean have
experienced, there are still knowledge gaps that need to be filled if we, as
producers of food, are truly serious about bringing the most nutritious,
pesticide free product to the consumer. To help fill these gaps it is imperitive
that our state legislature be willing to fund and direct our universities to
continue to study and research alternatives to the established chemically
dependent way of farming. Possibly even more important, our local county
farm advisqrs need funding and support from both public and private sources
to continue research into these same alternatives. As grow.ers we will
continue our on the farm experime~tation, with its obvious risks, as we have
done in the past.
Being new to this sustainable form of agriculture, I realize there are
no silver bullets 11 that will guarantee immediate success. However, with what
we have experienced this year I believe that given half a chance nature will
find its balance on our farm with the eventual profits coming back to us.
11

